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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$85,428,000 (2018:
HK$49,159,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2018: Nil).

Business Review and Management
Discussion and Analysis

During the year ended 31st March 2019, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) recorded a consolidated
revenue of HK$120,394,000 (2018: HK$114,500,000), gross
profit of HK$15,773,000 (2018: HK$24,174,000) and a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$85,428,000
(2018: HK$49,159,000). The drop in gross margin was mainly
attributable to the provision for impairment of film rights,
films in progress and film royalty deposits amounting to
approximately HK$29.4 million (2018: HK$17.2 million) during

the year.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
operations segment for the year increased from approximately
HK$41.5 million to HK$49.2 million. As at 31st March 2019,
the Group provided channels through various operators,
including “RED by HBO” channel through the platform of
HBO in certain Asian territories, HD movie channel through
Chunghwa Telecom platform and a movie channel through the

TVB pay vision in Hong Kong.

Since 2009, the Group has co-operated with world-class
media HBO to jointly launch a dedicated Asian channel “RED
by HBO” distributing in various markets in Southeast Asia.
In 2018, the Group concluded two additional agreements
with HBO Asia to expand and deepen the cooperation. The
additional agreements essentially expand the cooperation from
traditional TV channel service to new media on-line businesses
and extend the cooperation term for 5 years to 2022. In
addition, channel service in Singapore traditional TV platforms
and OTT platforms, which is considered to be one of the most
important media markets in Asia, has been launched during

the year.
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Through the expansion of the cooperation with HBO Asia
and the existing cooperations with other major media groups
in the region, the Group has well positioned itself as one of
the most important content providers to provide contents to
both the traditional and new media platforms in Greater China
and Asia. We believe the media industry is in the process
of transforming from traditional TV channel business to new
media business and creates a golden chance for the Group to

expand its media businesses rapidly.

In Hong Kong, the Group cooperates with TVB, the largest
media group in Hong Kong, broadcasting the Mei Ah Movie
Channel and providing quality movie content to TVB’s new

media business.

In Taiwan, the Group cooperates with Chunghwa Telecom,
one of the largest telecommunication companies in Taiwan, in
providing TV channels, VOD and OTT contents for audience in

Taiwan.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore

opportunities to develop channels with other operators.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sub-licensing segment decreased
from approximately HK$30.7 million to HK$23.9 million. Fewer
releases and licensing were concluded and completed during
the year. A number of new titles, casted by popular artistes,
are pending for release in the forthcoming financial year,
including titles namely “Theory of Ambitions” and “Guilt by
Design”. Certain other titles are in the progress of shooting
and expected to be released in the year 2020. These titles
received encouraging responses from the market during their

pre-sale.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

The Group also cooperates with iQlYI, the new media platform
with the largest internet traffic in the PRC. In 2018, the Group
authorised iQlYI to broadcast contents from the high content
library of the Group on a non-exclusive basis. In addition
to the guaranteed program fee, the Group is also able to
share the subscriber’'s monthly fee of iQlYI's services. The
cooperation with iQIYI further confirms the Group’s important
expansion strategy, as a content provider, of entering into the
new media market in the PRC. The Group will continue to seek
cooperations with other major new media platforms in order to

further cultivate the vast media market in the PRC.

Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customised programs to

its audiences.

During the year, the Group made provisions for impairment
in respect of its film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits amounting to HK$29.4 million (2018: HK$17.2
million), after taking into account the current market conditions
and estimated future recoverable amounts in respect of the

relevant assets.

The Group has started to penetrate into the China theatrical
market and established its first theatre in Tianjin since 2011.
The Group’s another theatre in Shanghai has also commenced
operations since 2013. In 2019, the Group’s new theatre in
Guangzhou has commenced operations. The Group’s theatres
are all digital and equipped with 3-D movie broadcasting
functions. The theatres contributed revenues of approximately
HK$23.8 million (2018: HK$24.3 million) in aggregate during
the year. During the year, the Group also agreed to invest 20%
equity interest in another theatre in Beijing which is expected

to commence operations in 2019.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED % SE iR 4 & 5 & B B BR 2 &

AEBTEFEAERERRZHRET S
ETEEE -RIZ2-NF  FEEREE
FEUFBREEBRARERERBEZR
BoBRREHEEN  AEET AR ZR
BETERBAFPZAE REFESHE
E-SRAFNEEFERNTHEFTEATE
HEBTEERRERRE - AEEKSEE
BEHMAMFHREFESREE UWE-—F
AN ERETSE AR -

BRETRERREN  AEETEEHCE
NEFCRARITHSG KEEASEZIHK
BEY BEAKEZEFEUARKRBEHE
ZREBRRAE  AEEBEELHEERMTS
BROK2ELEHE -

FR EEZEHEEBEEEEBE2EREEBETR
REFARATUE SEZ AEEEHE
EXRE BEPEEZREFREZR S
12 05 {8 3% 18 29,400,0008 T(ZF — N\ F :
17,200,000787t) °

AEECHBEETEEKR S UR-F
——FHERXERIERER - AEEULR L
BH2E—HEERIER-_E—=FRAE
B -R-ZZ-NEF XEEUREMNZHFE
RBRALE - AEBZERHHHB L
HEIDETHMEE  LARERRERNT
& # #923,800,000%8 T(= & — J\ F :
24,300,000 7T) 2 Wi o FA - AEBETRE
BERENLEES —RBEHER_Z—IEF
BRAEE 2 20% s °



During the year, the Group’s operating segment of concert
performance and events organisation contributed revenues of
approximately HK$13.2 million (2018: HK$15.2 million) as less
events were held during the year. The Group will continue to
invest in popular concerts and is of the view that this segment

will continue to bring contribution to the Group.

In respect of the mobile games applications and video
online segment, the Group has launched its video website
and mobile apps, which include contents of films, drama
and entertainment news, and also invested in associated
companies and a joint venture company of game development/
distribution and online advertising platforms. Looking forward,
the Group considers the new media investment will fit the

expected market demand.

The Group has signed up to manage the jobs of a number of
artistes and has developed its artiste management business.
This growing segment contributed revenue of approximately
HK$2.0 million (2018: HK$0.9 million) during the year. It
becomes a base to build our talent management business
and the Group will explore to seek other potential artistes and

performers in order to build up its talent pool.

Revenues attributable to sales and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product format was minimal for the

year.

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely IST Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (“IST”). Other than providing channel
management services to the Group, IST also provides the
same playout service plus post-production, HD-film restoration
and internetworking solution to a number of other media
operators. IST has planned to provide its services under
the developing platform which enables clients to distribute
contents in different formats to different ends, which is
expected to contribute future favorable returns to IST and the

Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss record a fair value loss of approximately
HK$5.1 million (2018: HK$4.1 million). The investment
properties portfolio of the Group contributed a surplus on
revaluation of approximately HK$4.1 million (2018: HK$19.3
million). Such unrealised gains/losses have no effect on the
Group’s cash flow. The future prospects of these investments

will depend on future market conditions.

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of summons
and statement of claim which was amended on 12th October
2012. Pursuant to the directions from the Court, all of the
relevant claims were further consolidated in the consolidated
statement of claims (the “Consolidated Statement of Claims”)
filed on 30th March 2017.

The claims as in the Consolidated Statement of Claims did
not specify the amount of damages being claimed. The
Consolidated Statement of Claims alleged that the Company
was a shadow director of one of its associated companies
(the “Associated Company”) which went into liquidation in
2003, and in its capacity as an alleged shadow director owed
fiduciary duties to the Associated Company and were trustees
of the assets of the Associated Company, and also alleged

that the Company fraudulently breached such fiduciary duties.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from its
legal advisors which have considered the information so far
available, consider that the prospects of success of such
claims depends on the findings of the Court in respect of the
legal and factual issues involved in the case, and that the

Company has a good chance to defend its position.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.
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Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2019, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$70 million, of which approximately
HK$59 million were utilised. Corporate guarantees executed
by the Company and certain of the Group’s deposits, financial
assets and properties with aggregate net book values of
HK$123 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 17.8% as at 31st
March 2019 was based on the total of bank loans, other loans
and obligations under finance leases of HK$95,262,000 (of
which HK$54,625,000, HK$1,542,000 and HK$39,095,000
are repayable within one year, in the second year and in the
third to fifth year respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$536,395,000. The Group’s bank balances
and borrowings are primarily denominated in HK$, RMB and
NTD. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely. During the year ended 31st March 2019, the Group
did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit
to any financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign

currency.

At 31st March 2019, the Group had commitments in respect
of film production, film and program licensing agreements
amounting to approximately HK$12 million. The commitments
will be financed by the Group’s internal resources and banking

and other available facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2019, the Group employed 139 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on market trend
and individual staff’s performance. In addition to the basic
salaries, staff benefits include discretionary bonus, medical
insurance scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group
also has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
Employee benefit expenses of HK$47.5 million were charged

to the profit or loss during the year.

[
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERGEEEAEBZEN

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 60, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible
for the corporate strategy and development of the Group.
Mr. Li has been appointed as the member of the 13th National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2018. He is also the Vice Chairman of the
Federation of Motion Film Producers of Hong Kong Limited
since 1998. He is the father of Mr. Li Tang Yuk, an executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 64, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
30 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited since 2001. He has also been appointed
as the member of Hong Kong Film Development Council and
Hong Kong Arts Development Council since April 2015 and
January 2017 respectively.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 34, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the distribution, production
and investment of films and telefeatures of the Group and
its principal associated company. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of
Higher Education. He is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,

the Chairman of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Dr. Dong Ming, aged 61, has been appointed as an executive
director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company with
effect from 1st September 2014. He held master and doctor
degrees from the London School of Economics and Political
Science and has over 25 years’ experience in investment
banking, asset management and corporate management. Prior
to joining the Company, Dr. Dong had been a Senior Managing
Director of Bear Stearns and Director of Merrill Lynch, and
responsible for China marketing and corporate financing.
He also worked as an executive director of China Taiping
Insurance Holdings Company Limited and Tianjin Development
Holdings Limited (both shares of which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and
responsible for investment management, strategic planning

and merger and acquisition.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 63, was appointed as the
non-executive director of the Company in February 2007
and is a partner of IDG Capital. He is currently a member of
the board of directors of International Data Group Inc. and
a non-executive director of IDG Energy Investment Limited,
and HJ Capital (International) Holdings Company Limited,
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Shong is now

the trustee of Boston University.

During the previous year, Mr. Shong resigned as a non-
executive director of WPP plc, which is listed on the London
Stock Exchange and resigned as an independent director of
China United Network Communications Limited, company

listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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EERGEEEAEBZEN

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 72, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST
Inc, a private equity research firm. His business experience in
Asia dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s
role in the consortium which won the government-sponsored
bidding for Hong Kong’s cable TV franchise. He became a
partner in Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and
since that time has played a key role in the development and
continues to be the President and the Chief Operating Officer
and a member of its Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc.,
a Beijing-based card services company which is partnered
with SinoPec Group in China. He is a Board Director of the
Able Channel, a media platform which serves and supports
those who live with disabilities and chronic illness. Over the
past decade, he has also provided consulting and strategic

advisory services to a number of international corporations.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. LAM Lee G, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February 2007.
He is the Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited, Non-Executive Chairman — Hong Kong and
ASEAN Region and Chief Adviser to Macquarie Infrastructure
and Real Assets Asia, a member of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government’s Committee on Innovation,
Technology and Re-Industrialisation, and the Court of the City
University of Hong Kong, Convenor of the Panel of Advisors
on Building Management Disputes of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government Home Affairs Department,
President of the United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UN ESCAP) Sustainable
Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council and Chairman
of its Task Force on Banking and Finance, Vice Chairman

of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC), a member of
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the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Belt and Road
Committee and Convenor of its Digital Silk Road Working
Group, a member of the Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund
Investment Advisory Committee, and the Advisory Board of the
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, Honorary Advisor
to the Hong Kong Business Angel Network (HKBAN), Honorary
Chairman - Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, Chairman of Monte
Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong
and President of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation

Foundation.

Dr. Lam holds a BSc in Sciences and Mathematics, an MSc
in Systems Science and an MBA from the University of
Ottawa in Canada, an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in the UK, a LLM in Law from the
University of Wolverhampton in the UK, an MPA and a PhD
from the University of Hong Kong. He is also a Solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong (and formerly a member of
the Hong Kong Bar), an Accredited Mediator of the Centre
for Effective Dispute Resolution, a Fellow of Certified
Management Accountants (CMA) Australia, the Institute of
Public Accountants, the Institute of Financial Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, and an Honorary Fellow of Certified
Public Accountants (CPA) Australia, the Hong Kong Institute of
Facility Management, and the University of Hong Kong School

of Professional and Continuing Education.
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EERGEEEAEBZEN

During the previous year, Dr. Lam was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Mingfa Group
(International) Company Limited on 1st September 2018,
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited on 1st January 2019
and a non-executive director of Green Leader Holdings
Group Limited on 1st June 2019, the shares of all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was also appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Thomson Medical
Group Limited (listed on Singapore Exchange) on 2nd May
2019 and TMC Life Sciences Berhad (listed on Bursa Malaysia)
on 25th January 2019. He resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong listed Xi’an Haitiantian
Holdings Company Limited on 23rd July 2018 and resigned
as a non-executive director of Green Leader Holdings Group
Limited on 22nd July 2019.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director
of MIE Holdings Corporation (company listed on the Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman of CNHK Media Limited.

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
1st March 2016, is a seasoned executive in the information
and communication technologies industry. He has served
Hong Kong Telecommunications (“HKT”) for 34 years and
has held many senior management positions in his tenure of
service. Prior to his retirement at HKT, he was the Managing
Director of Business Processes and responsible for reviewing
and overhauling HKT’s business processes and related
systems. Mr. Leung had also been the Managing Director
of TV & New Media, where he was responsible for now TV,
MOQOV and now.com.hk, as well as business development of
IPTV opportunities internationally. Mr. Leung joined Cable &
Wireless HKT’s multimedia business unit in 1994. His previous
appointments also included the Executive Vice President
of Consumer Marketing & Business, and responsible for
marketing, product development and management of PCCW'’s
consumer telephone and broadband services.
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Mr. Leung had served the Communication Association of
Hong Kong as a member of the Executive Committee from
2006 to 2010. He was also a member of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council’s Entertainment Industry Advisory

Committee member between 2008 to 2010.

Mr. Leung graduated from the University of Toronto with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1979, and from Canada’s University

of Windsor with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1980.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 49, is the Company Secretary of the
Company and Group’s financial controller and is responsible
for all financial and accounting matters of the Group. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 20 years of auditing

and accounting experience. He joined the Group in July 2002.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The principles adopted by the Company emphasise a quality
board, transparency and accountability to shareholders. In
the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the
Code for the year ended 31st March 2019, with the exception
of the deviations as mentioned below.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to deal with the requirement in respect of the
appointment terms of non-executive directors as required
under the code provision.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2019.
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Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2019, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including four executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Li Tang Yuk and Dr. Dong Ming, two non-executive
Directors — Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, and
three independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lam Lee
G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic.

Biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 15.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. Other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk who is the eldest
son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of the Company, there
is no relationship among members of the Board and the

independent non-executive directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.
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Board of directors (Continued)
The attendance of the directors in the four board meetings and
one general meeting held during the year are set out below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing ZEE LS
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BEREE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk EEMEE
Dr. Dong Ming BB

Mr. Hugo Shong RERECR A

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lam Lee G. MREEL
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BEELEE
Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic REIEE

Note:

(@) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.
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Board committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on

matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
audit committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of the
Company on the scope and findings of the audit and the
external auditor’s management letter; and (c) to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices,
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the

committee is Dr. Lam Lee G..

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the members
attended the meetings except Mr. Guo Yan Jun was

absent in one of the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2019 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure

have been made.
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Board committees (Continued)

(2

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 #% £

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
with written terms of reference. lts primary duties are
to (a) make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management and the remuneration
of non-executive directors; (b) establish formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policy; (c) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
and (d) make

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

corporate goals and objectives;

packages of individual executive directors and senior

management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung
Tak Sing, Dominic. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lam Lee G..

During the year, the remuneration committee met once
to discuss remuneration related matters. All of the
members attended the meeting. During the meeting, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed

and approved.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and senior

management are set out in Notes 11 and 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Board committees (Continued)

3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. Its primary duties
are to: (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assess
the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun
and Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic, and two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and
Mr. Tong Hing Chi. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Guo Yan Jun. The nomination committee determined
the policy for the nomination of directors and the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once,
Dr. Lam Lee G., Mr. Guo Yan Jun and Mr. Leung Tak
Sing, Dominic attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when

necessary.
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Board committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 39 to 51. Amount of approximately
HK$1,685,000 was charged to the Group’s consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 in
respect of the audit service provided by the auditor of the

Company.

Corporate governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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Risk management and internal controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Management of the Company has monitored the strategic plan
and performance, established ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group, and set up a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuing the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the

occurrence of fraud and errors.

The following procedures have been established in connection
with the risk management and internal controls within the

Group:-

1. Control environment including organisation structure,

limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities;

2. Risk management self-assessment and internal control
review conducted from time to time by the internal audit

function and external auditor of the Group;

3. Appropriate risk management measures such as written

policies and procedures;

4.  Effective information platforms to facilitate internal and

external information flow; and

5.  Any material internal control defects will be reported to
and discussed by the Audit Committee and the Board,
and management to investigate and take appropriate

measures to respond to and migrate the defects.
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Risk management and internal controls
(Continued)

The Board has performed an annual review on the

effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal

controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31st March 2019 with no material issues noted and the

Board consider them effective and adequate.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the inside information can be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner in

accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Communication with shareholders and
shareholders’ right

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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Communication with shareholders and
shareholders’ right (Continued)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii) must
be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2019.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st
March 2019 is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 9 to this annual report. Description
of the risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are disclosed
in this annual report.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 52.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 227 to 228.

Share capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$206,220,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$28,800,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable

to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
226.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to directors and employees, consultants,
agents, advisers, customers, suppliers, business and
joint venture partners or any employee thereof, of the
Company, its subsidiaries and its associated companies
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Group by aligning the interest of option holders to
shareholders of the Company.

(b) Participants

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the
“Board”) may offer to grant share options (the “Options”)
to any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner or
any employee thereof, of the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associated companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as
the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. Subject to the provisions of
the Listing Rules and applicable law and other regulations
from time to time in force, the Board’s administrative
powers include the authority, in its discretion:-

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the

Listing Rules and the law, the time of the grant of
Options;
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Administration (Continued)

(iii)

(vii)

to determine the number of shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the subscription price;

° the Option Period, which shall be not greater
than the period prescribed by the Listing Rules
from time to time (which is, as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, a
period of 10 years from the date of grant);

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it vests or
becomes exercisable in whole or in part (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

° the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance target);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments must be made;

° the period, if any, during which shares allotted
and issued upon exercise of the Option shall
be subject to restrictions on dealings, and the
terms of such restrictions;

to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme,
including rules and regulations relating to sub-
schemes established for the purpose of qualifying
for preferred treatment under foreign laws and for
benefits intended solely for any particular type of
Qualifying Grantees; and
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Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

M)

(9)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial shareholders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned for
a period of 28 days from the date of the offer (or such
longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the Subscription Price Reference
Date; (ii) the average closing prices of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
Subscription Price Reference Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Option Period

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share
Option Scheme

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Overriding Limit

The limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(iii) below, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, being
563,303,452 Shares (the “Initial Mandate Limit”),
based on 5,633,034,525 issued shares as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other schemes will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the 10%
limit.

Refreshing of Mandate Limit

The Company may by ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules to
the Shareholders before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (the “Refreshed Mandate Limit”)
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate
Limit. Options previously granted under the
schemes (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with any of the schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of Shares available under the Share
Option Scheme (Continued)
(iv) Grant to specifically identified Qualifying
Grantees
Specifically identified Qualifying Grantees may be
granted Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The
Company may in addition seek separate approval
by its Shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided that
the Options in excess of the limit are granted only
to Qualifying Grantees specifically identified by the
Company and a circular containing such information
as required by the Listing Rules is issued to the
Shareholders before such approval is sought.

(v) Limit for each Qualifying Grantee

The number of Options that can be granted to any
Qualifying Grantee during any 12-month period shall
be subject to the restriction that the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
Options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in such 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue. Where any further grant of Options
to a Qualifying Grantee would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted to such person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over
1% of the shares in issue, such further grant shall
be subject to separate approval by the Shareholders
in general meeting with the relevant Qualifying
Grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.
Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall
issue a circular containing such information as
required by the Listing Rules to the Shareholders.

As at 31st March 2019, the number of securities
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 592,311,452, having approximately 9.99% of
5,9283,738,525, being the number of issued shares of the
Company at 31st March 2019 and the date of the annual
report respectively.

As at 31st March 2019, there was no outstanding option
granted under the Mandate Limit.
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Directors of the Company
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. Tong Hing Chi (Managing Director)
Mr. Li Tang Yuk

Dr. Dong Ming

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo Shong
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lam Lee G.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun

Mr. Leung Tak Sing, Dominic

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s
business

Other than those set out in the paragraph headed “Connected

transactions”, no other transactions, arrangements and

contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries

was a party and in which a director of the Company had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests

EFRESTRASRELF -

and/or short positions in the shares, EAFEMAREERESEMEM
underlying shares and debentures of the HBEEZ B {7 - HERBE 7 & R
Company or any specified undertaking REZHER ke

of the Company or any other associated

corporations
At 31st March 2019, the interests and short positions of
each director and chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company

RZZB-NAE=ZA=+—-0  REXAQTK
&2 R E RS ([ 38 2 R ERP 1) 5 XV AR
EI2RAFE 2B RMATRERIBA N B
BrBEA REEERRSTHRAEBEARAT
REMBIEREZRPERIZER)Z
B EEROREEE 2 BERARWT ¢

(a) WEEEOC.2ETZELTHER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held

at 31st March

— Long position 2019
EEFaEckRih®E — #E R-E—hFE
Personal Family Corporate =A=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests EEATERT
EENa BAER XEBHER EEER BEzES L
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing 370,967,500 189,843,750 2,559,797,550 52.68%
ZEE L4 Note (i) Note (ii)
Bzt () HBiaF (i)
Mr. Tong Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.28%
BEEMEE
Mr. Li Tang Yuk 1,940,000 — — 0.03%
BT E
Dr. Dong Ming 5,000,000 — — 0.08%
EREBL
Notes: BIEE -

()  These shares are held by Ms. Li Pik Lin, the spouse of (i)
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. Li Kuo Hsing.

BLLTEE-

A -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED % SE iR 4 & 5 & B B BR 2 &

ZERMAZTHAALE KRBT

(i) ZERMNAEZTEHELEERZSZ
AF Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited
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REPORT.OF.THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any specified undertaking
of the Company or any other associated
corporations (Continued)

(b) Interests in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:

EEEHE

EFRESTHRASRELF -
FAFMEMSERGREMEM
HBEEZ R - HERRG R R
HEcHSR WikA@)

(b) FLFIMBLARED
FEALEBAFETIMBELAER
E{E 18T ERFEIELERD

Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FRiSERRIE

EIER Dz & B

Personal interests

Name =8 BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuYERERRAA 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited ERMEBRLF 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnHEEERRA R 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BERES REREABE ALT &
B R 2 E S AR A AT
YEARY EAANESRBRTHAL
(BEREZERERKRT BT L) BE
AAFREABEEZ R - AERG RS
RS TR A -

BrEuiES  REREMER  SEBRE
BITRABEBERSEzZEBRARE TR
ZFZ)WEERA QR R AP EBE AR
mo NEERFTEARBAATREAH
FERD (ARRERREER(WER)) 2
EMER - MARBEBSFROETIRE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Substantial shareholders’ interests and/
or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st
March 2019, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of
the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company

Ho Chi Sing 17

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P.
IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd.
Zhou Quan EZ&

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P.

Li Pei Chin ZX&A]

Notes:
(@) Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in Note (b).
(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund
L.P.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED % SE iR 4 & 5 & B B BR 2 &

Note

(b)
(b)

FERRNELXFZG R HER
BRizZHESR Rk

RIERSRBERGIEXVEEI6HRAFE
ZEIERRBCTMETR R-ZE-NF=A
=t—B ARAEEBMUTETERRE
BEARBCBITRAE% HI £z EH KK
R REEBRRLXFHRBERHESERES
ITHABEUIN 2R -

o

SEREEO0.02EITZF AT HEE
Number of shares — Long position
EiH#A — 8

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March

interests 2019

RZB—-NEF

=RA=+-—H

EELTE BT

EEED BFEFZHSL

398,840,000 6.73%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

370,205,516 6.25%

307,385,666 5.19%

334,042,000 5.64%
M -

(a) B¥EFIEE(b) FTEl2 370,205,516 B AR 17 ©

(b) 3IERE — B % K B FEIDG-Accel China
Growth Fund L.P.35%5 2 307,385,666 %
BB ©
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REPORT.OF.THE DIRECTORS

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 37%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 68%
Sales

— the largest customer 22%
— five largest customers in aggregate 56%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2019 is set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.

EEEHE

TEaH
RDFRE NI BT I RAFIEEAHRIEAD
A2 BRETEABBGER 2 EBRTBA
@

FTEHEBRER
REESEEHERRES B2 EER
BRSEEESLNT

] ]
— BARHERD 37%
— BEREEEEE 68%
$HEm
- BAREF 22%
— EREFEF 56%

BES WEZBEANTMNBESHAE
BARTRAKGN UL RREBEEZEE
BEHERNTF 2&EES -

REX 5
AEERARE-E—NESA=+—BIF
ETYZEBEALRS 2HERRKAH
K|MEM 34 - ZEXBATER LETRA
ETZHERS -

BHATFRE

REFAADTARMEZENRAALAE
BHA ADABRBRARE ABEFAL
ATBITROBD 26% 2 RARRBRE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 25.

Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of
this report of the directors, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any of
the directors of the Company (whether made by the Company
or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Company).

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June 2019

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED £ iR 44 & & BB R 4 |

ERESERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i
pwc

To the Shareholders of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Mei Ah Entertainment
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 52 to 225, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31st March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

= RVE7% 2GR

BXTRERARERRLFBRE
(REFZEZMEIHIERLE])

BER

BHE#AAE
XDRVLEANAEEBRIFAGATEHBER
ANDREMBARATRBIESRE ) I
REL2E 225 ENFEE U BHMKREIE

—hWE=ZA=+-BNREEE
{ZZA ﬂ:ﬁr“E’J REBER
s BEZALFENGFSEZERER
s BEZRLEENGSEZEIX
e HEZ

ALEENGERERER I R

s HREUBHmRWE BERIESITEHE
BE -

EAMER

EMRE ZEGRAUBRREREETE
BMAERA (T B BREEANE
BEmPsttRMRTEEREAR-F-NF=A
Zt-HENREUBRAREBEZALSF
ENGEMBRARGERERE X E
REB(DRARADNBEEREZ HEME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

BRAER

EMEREFT BSOS ESI(FBE
HRNETET c BPEZZSEATRENE
FEEAREZBE L ETFE M BHRA
ENEE RO P IEE— DR -

BPAEE RAMESHNEITERERAER
HEEMBRMANETZREHER -

Wi
RESBEHMASEAN(EXSRER
SEDATEBITA D RMABLIRES
 WEBTTRATNWEMERBERET -

MEFEER
FAEETEEERBERMANERAE 5
HAPGAMBBRERRNENTRBEENS
He BLEEERERMEAERGSUBR
RRHEZRBETREN - KM TEYHE
LEERHERNER -



INDEPENDENT Af}*DI_TOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

o Impairment of film rights and films in progress

° Assessment of going concern assumption

Key Audit Matters
BT ER

Refer to Notes 2.11, 2.12, 4(a) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BESHGREUHBRRME2.11 212 4@ R 15 °

As at 31st March 2019, the carrying amounts of film
rights and films in progress were HK$135,123,000.
BE-Z-NF=ZA=+—H EZMEREBRPEY
AR £ %4 135,123,000 8 7T °

In view of the box office of film rights distribution,
which performed below expectation during the year,
and the requirement to perform an annual impairment
assessment for intangible assets not ready to use,
management performed an impairment assessment
for film rights and films in progress as at 31st March
2019 and their carrying values were written down
to their recoverable amounts, which were measured
at the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use.
BERFREMERTNREEREARNAR R ARE
RANEFEEETFERENENERAE  EEEHEZR
CE-NFZA=T-BENEEMERRRPEET
TRERE  MREESHRAZETREEE(RAAEBER
HEXALEREENRSETE)

= RVE7% 2GR

FRRFstEH =)
KRBT RANERESHEEMANT

s EXHRERBRIDEXRE

o  FHMERERERR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
B EMAEEMRBFHER

We understood, evaluated and tested the key controls
over the recoverability assessment performed by
management on the film rights and films in progress.
BMEREEEREL RERBRS BE AR AT IRE M
FHE TS R VB RIE S W EETIE RO -

We assessed the methodology used by management in
determining the recoverable amounts with reference to
the industry practice.
HMEMEEBERBTRENEE TR D &R
M TTE ©

We compared the fair value less costs of disposal
determined by the management to available information
through market research and compared the value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal in determining
the recoverable amounts of the film rights and films in
progress.
EMELREEEMEENAAEMEERAEEBTS
MEEEHNER  UHEXHRERBRIEEZNEAEE
BERAAERHERNEHERUBEH TR W EHE -
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B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
RBFEHFESR

Management determined the recoverable amounts
by using a value in use approach, which were
calculated based on the present value of future
cash flows directly generated by the film rights and
films in progress. The forecast of future cash flows
involved judgments regarding the future cash inflows
generated from forecast revenue, which included
types of revenue streams that the film rights and
films in progress could be distributed, the number of
and duration of planned circulations and expected
cash outflows for the costs for these circulations and
distributions. Impairment of film rights and films in
progress recognised for the year ended 31st March
2019 amounted to HK$26,080,000.
EEEEARECRERBRIEXZEHELNARKR
EREBREMAENEREENEETREEHE - T
ARBEESRESREBARABAFELERRRESRAN
BETHE BRETHRERBHIPBZTRTHBAR
RER - 8 ERURBRISERRE - R EMRR TR
ANFEHRRERE -BE-E-NF=ZA=+—HLHF
E CHINEZRERBERHDELMES 26,080,000

BT e

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 3F %% £

FRRFstEH =)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BB A EEREEH TR

We evaluated and challenged management’s
assessment on the expected revenue to be generated
by the film rights and films in progress based on
historical data and our knowledge on the market
and industry. We tested the expected revenue from
circulation and distribution of the film rights and films
in progress by comparing with market information
(including box office income) of other similar types of
films in the market and sales agreements entered into
subsequent to the year end.
BMBRBELBBEREMAEZENTERITRER  HE
BEABEEXMERBRT ST AR WA NTLETIX
WRHERE - HMAAT LRREFRERBRIES
THREBAREG  S2EmS LEMREEXNHEERE
REERARR) RFELKEERT UNEEHRETLR -

We also evaluated and challenged management’s
assumptions of the estimated circulation and
distribution costs to be incurred by comparing the ratio
of these budgeted costs to the budgeted revenue with
other comparable films based on historical data of
similar films and industry research.
BEMTREBEUEXNELBERITRAE  BEEHK
HEHENRNLEREE AT REFETLR  HEEE
BHENEEENME ERRBITHANBRRETIRILRE
HE5E ©

SENEEBRAA



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
RBEHFER

We consider the impairment assessment of film

rights and films in progress as a key audit matter due
to the significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the recoverability of the film rights
and films in progress.
ENEEBHEXRERBRPEZ N TR D MEAEH
NWERHE R RMRAAESSRERBERPELH
BEFEEEREETSE -

= RVE7% 2GR

MREHER®)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EMmE A EERREEMN TR

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions for forecast revenue and estimated
circulation and distribution costs and considered the
extent of change in those assumptions that would
result in impairment.

HAE TR S AR AT R R BITRAEEBRET
BRESN  WZEBZEHRREPHUBERBENREE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found
significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the recoverability of the film rights
and films in progress to be supportable based on the
available evidence.

ERBETHER  EMRACEBYEXRERBRT
EXUWEMEENERAG R ATEEEEXE -
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B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
FREEHFER

Refer to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial

statements.

FERREMBHERME2.1.1 -

As at 31st March 2019, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$71,971,000. The
net current liability position may impact the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, management performed an
assessment with respect to the working capital
sufficiency, as supported by a cash flow forecast
prepared covering a period of not less than twelve
months from 31st March 2019 (the “Forecast”),
and concluded that the Group will have adequate
resources to continue its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months from the year end date and
therefore the use of going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial statements is appropriate.
RZB-IWEFEZA=1+—B  FEENRBEERHER
BEEEH 71,971,000 T - REE EFHEAMRR TR
EREEBEKLENED - At REHEENRS Y
BHirMs EEECHEEESTEMETNML X
HEE—Z-NF=ZA=Z+T-BEXATPRATZEAN
BReneml(EADFA%E AEESEBREAER
BESEXBRBITENFEBEFRARTZEAARE
BHMBERE BRERHGSVBBRHERFER
EEEDBRE -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

FRRFstEH =)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BMHFEMAEEMBFHER

In order to evaluate management’s assessment, we

assessed certain key assumptions underlying the

Forecast by performing the following procedures

among others:
RFEEEREENTME - RMETFERETBREAI) XN
TREFUFGEE TEERR

for the forecast revenue which comprised (i)
revenue as supported by signed contracts, (ii)
the estimated revenue based on expected film
exhibition, licensing and sub-licensing income,
and (iii) estimated other revenues from operation,
we tested, on sample basis, the signed contracts
and also compared the estimated income to
historical and available market data and found
these assumptions reasonable;

MBATRR (BIE()HERTENEFHRA - ()R
TARRE R RAR ~ % H R B AR WA Y (SR R
(i) EEFFEHEMBEHBRAIMS - RMYESHETH
BHRETHENR - THEARBAEEERAEHS
HBELER - BRZERRDESE |

for the forecast cash receipts from customers, we
compared the estimated debtor turnover rate with
historical rates and found them comparable;
REREEF2RAREWNME KB EZEFHN
AEHEEREFE P RETHER - YRRMEES
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters

MEEHER

We focused on the evaluation of management’s

assessment because this involved making significant
judgments and assumptions about future events and
conditions whose outcomes are inherently uncertain.
EMEPRAEEEZRENTMG  BRESREREK
BERKBREHERNABGNRSR  HERTFEARAEN
THEEM -

= RVE7% 2GR

bl eI
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
B EMAEEMRBFHER

° for the forecast repayment of loan principals and
interests, we checked the repayment schedules
and recalculated the expected interest payments
according to the terms of respective loan
agreements noting no material variances;

s RBEEXAERISZHABRMS  RMABEE
B & R AR 15 AE B 18 B B IR R Eﬁﬁ;ﬂ%ﬁ%
RBREAEER

!
TA

iS5
Ri

° for the banking facilities available for utilisation
during the Forecast period, we made reference
to the drawdown history and the loan facility
letters, as well as management’s assessment on
the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants
during the Forecast period, and found their
assumptions about the feasibility of drawing down
the unutilised loans facilities as acceptable;

s HAEAPEAUHBANRITIHRENS  BM2ZER
BEERERMERNT  UREEEHAEENTER
HEETEREANTME YRR EERRHNIER
RYAERBMEATTHNRRITER

° for the forecast payments on capital expenditure
and operating expenditure, we checked, on a
sample basis, signed contracts for the contracted
expenditure and also make reference to the
historical records of the Group for the projected
expenditure. The overall estimated level of
expenditure is largely consistent with the historical
records of the Group;

e RMEAFIRKLERIMNAHCRMS @ RMHER
EREHNRAXBRITNEGYN  YBZLAEEEARIHN
FESLFCER - BERMAFHRASKFREAEEERRHEAHK
-3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT & A

B ZHEHRE

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key Audit Matters
FREEFER

|
.

MR FEIR (2)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EMmE A EERREEN TR

o for listed equity investments held by the Group

and are expected to be realised into cash during
the Forecast period, we checked the latest
monthly statements for the number of shares held
by the Group, and checked the fair value of the
equity by performing online research, and noted
no material variances; and

s MAKEHFAMNLTREREMS - AHSREUH
BRRARE  RMRAKESENROBERER
HMARE UEBETHLATURERENAR
B FRIUBMERER | R

o we also evaluated management’s sensitivity
analysis of the forecast cash and bank balances
by considering potential downside scenarios
against reasonably plausible changes to the key
assumptions and found the resultant impact did
not adversely change the forecast position of
available funds of the Group.

e HBMTAMEEBEHRIRERBITEHKNBRED
o WEBERBERBRNSEARSHNEETE
BR > BREAFESBEHAEETSESHEDMNR
TUIE R AR EE o

Based on the procedures performed, we found
significant judgments and estimates made by
management on the assessment of going concern
assumption to be supportable based on the available
evidence.

ERBETHER  BEMRAEEBHIAEFELERR
EEMNERABERETEFEEXE -

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

= RVE7% 2GR

Htis e
EAAESANHMERAE - HitERE
EERANFERES  EFEEFRAHER
RRBMNEBERS -

BEMEGRSMBERNZRELFRERME
B BT TEZEHMERBRREFAEX
HYEERE 455 ©

FEBRMBGESMBHRRNES  ZAMANE
FREBEEMES  HULBRED  ZEHEHM
ERROEGEMBHRERIKMERTBE
FHRTENERATEEREBRELTEE
ERIERBRAAFER

EREMEBTHIHE  RRFARSHEA
EREFREEANGERRL  HAFTEREZS
B EELH  BURBEMRS -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZHEHRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

=G

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other (losses)/gains — net

Selling, distribution and marketing
expenses

Administrative expenses

Net impairment losses on financial
assets

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance (costs)/income — net
Share of losses of associates — net
Share of loss of a joint venture

Provision for impairment of a joint
venture

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company

Basic and diluted loss per share

EF

HAplg A

Hit(&518) WaE — B8
HE  BRITRTHERAX
TR

MR EERERSEFE
EEFR

BRI
BhE A A

(RERA),
BBWA — FE
LB E R REE — FHE

EhE—BaehEEE
BELFRERE

PRSI IR
FRSHR
FABR

T5HE B -

RORERAA
FEEEIR

FLFRAAEREEBRER

BREARBEEHR

The notes on pages 60 to 225 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2019 2018

—E-AFE  ZE-N\F

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
btaE FET FET
5 120,394 114,500
6 (104,621) (90,326)
15,773 24174

5 12,525 13,173
7 (1,009) 15,244
6 (8,257) (12,616)
6 (86,070) (66,381)
3.1(b) (5,075) (19,784)
(72,113) (46,190)

8 2,578 821
8 (2,625) (286)
(47) 585)
16 (11,488) (1,942)
17 - (1,902)
17 - (282)
(83,648) (49,781)
9 (5,006) (1,442)
(88,654) (51,223)
(85,428) (49,159)
(3,226) (2,064)

(88,654) (51,223)

HK cents HK cents

Al JBA

10 (1.44) (0.83)

FEOOE22 B2 ARG B RET 2E
BE IR 1D o




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZEER

Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
btaE F&iT FET
Loss for the year FAEGE (88,654) (51,223)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax: HMM2EE5IR > MKRRIE :
Items that will not be reclassified TEEH S HEEEm &
subsequently to profit or loss ZIHEHE
Surplus on revaluation of buildings BFEGHALR 13(a) 4,167 5,906
Deferred taxation arising from BFEMEREE
revaluation surplus of buildings ZIRFER 1B 29 (716) (819)
Items that may be reclassified to profit A E 7 EEEmFkZEEH
or loss
Fair value losses on available-for-sale At HEHRBEEZ A AE
financial assets — net 518 — B 20(a) - (8,214)
Impairment losses on available-for-sale At &K EEREEE
financial assets - 50
Currency translation differences EMBEERE (7,129) (9,994)
Other comprehensive loss for the FRHEM2EESR
year, net of tax R\ (3,678) (8,071)
Total comprehensive loss for the FRXAEGIREHE
year (92,332) (59,294)
Total comprehensive loss THHEEEGEZEEEEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ARRATER A (88,303) (57,939)
Non-controlling interests R E R (4,029) (1,355)
Total comprehensive loss for the FRNZEEGIREHE
year (92,332) (59,294)

The notes on pages 60 to 225 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FO0E2B B2 MEARGEN KRR 2B
BEER1D o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEEBER

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Film rights, films in progress and film

royalty deposits

Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other receivables and deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Prepayments, deposits, trade and
other receivables

Contract assets

Deferred fulfilment costs

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits

Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Shareholders’ funds
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

RE

FEREN R E

MHE L L it A
M - BERRE
REWM=

EXNE BRPEIK

ERERE

i NP
REEREBE
AHEEMBEE
HitEWFER RS

TN E
7E

BANNE 2 -EER

H b FE W FRIR
BHEE
IS B A AR

BARERABBRRZY

BEE

Eiﬂi?ﬁfﬁ’_¢?**
HSRIT R

ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@

HRAE

fHa
FAFMAAEGRS

IR

RAD = E
f#E

BRRES
FFIER S

2§

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

Note
BitaE

12
13
14

5
16
17(a)
20(a)
22

21

22
5(d)
5(d)

20(b)
19(b)
23
23

24
24
26

As at 31st March

R=R=+—H
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
24,932 25,720
238,093 184,813
243,156 241,486
163,126 176,176
9,861 11,121
4 4
— 3,498
2,668 5,918
681,840 648,736
454 179
12,408 44,254
24,019 —
3,511 —
40,345 41,922
23,500 23,500
3,793 1,856
9,117 55,406
117,147 167,117
798,987 815,853
118,475 118,475
407,428 407,428
10,492 97,734
536,395 623,637
3,078 4,691
539,473 628,328




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
meEEERRER

As at 31st March

®=RA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\#F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt TFET FiEx
LIABILITIES AR\
Non-current liabilities FEREBAR
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 28(a), (b) 40,637 6,452
Obligations under finance leases MERANERE 28(c) - 144
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFSHEE 29 29,759 24,445
70,396 31,041
Current liabilities mERE
Trade and other payables B2 RHEAMENATIE 27 97,818 78,434
Receipts in advance FEURFRIE - 25,458
Contract liabilities EHEE 5(d) 13,448 —
Amounts due to associates P B N B FRIE 34 11,638 1,834
Bank borrowings RITEE 28(a) 54,481 39,590
Obligations under finance leases MERANEE 28(c) 144 168
Current income tax liabilities EHIFEHREE 11,589 11,000
189,118 156,484
Total liabilities Ham 259,514 187,525
Total equity and liabilities HESRASR 798,987 815,853
The notes on pages 60 to 225 are an integral part of these FOOE225 B st ARG EIRET 2B
consolidated financial statements. BE R4 o
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the SEMBRBRRN=-ZBE-—HILFEASNAB=++tHE
Board of Directors on 27th June 2019 and were signed on its EEEE YREEZ-
behalf.
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FERA L 23
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE;S_._IN EQUITY

n‘/T\

SERZHR

Balance at 1st April 2017 NZE-tEMR-RY

-
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year EnEE
Other comprehensive loss A2EER
Surplus on revaluation of buldings ~ ERE(5RE
(Note 13(a) W 136)
Deferred taxation arising from BRERENEL
revaluation surplus of buldings ~~ ZiEEHE
(Note 29) H29)
Fair value losses on avalable-for- L EHERZ
sale financial assets - net DAERE -
(Note 20(3) TRy
Impairment losses on avallable-for- WL ER#EE
sale financial assets (Note 7) HEEERHE7)
Cutency translation differences ~ EWREEE
— Group - 558
— Associates (Note 16) - BelalE )
Total other comprehensive loss ~ Et2EFELE
Total comprehensive loss 2HEREH
Share options lapsed BRMZERE
Total transactions with owners,  EHEAZLAHH
recognised directly in equity EfREERY
Balance at 31st March 2018 A23-I\F
SR=t-AckB

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 3F %% £

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRRARE

Available-

for-sale

Share- financial

based assets

Share  payment Buildings  revaluation

redemption ~ reserve revaluation ~ reserve Non-

Share Share  reserve W Contrbuted  Exchenge  reseve  TEEHE Accumulated  controling Total
captal  premum  ROEE  AREZ  supls  diference  BFERE  BKEE  losses  inferests  equily
LTS v B MAEE  SABR  ERZE Wk EflE  ZMEE FERER 4Rk
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
e FEr tEn TR fEn T T TER T T T
18475 407428 12 11861 189,009 8814 73,048 5645 (132,716) 6,046 687,622
- - - = = - - - (49,159) (2,064 (61229
- - - - - - 5,906 = - = 5906
- - - - - - (819 - - - (619
- - - - - - - (3,214) - - (3,214)
- - - - - - - 50 - - 50
- - - - - (10822 - - - 109 (10113
- - - - - 19 - - - - 19
- - - - - (10703 5,087 (3,164) - 709 8,071)
- - - - - (10703 5,087 (3,164 (49,159) (1,355 (69.294)
- - - (11861) - - - - 11,861 - -
- - - (11861) - - - - 11,861 - -
18475 407428 12 - 189009 (1889 7813 2481 (170,014) 4691 628328

SENEEBRAA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O\F-CH')\N_GES IN EQUITY
T T

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLTREAR
Available-
for-sale
Share- financial
Share based Buildings assets Non-

Share Share  redemption Other  payment Contributed Exchange revaluation revaluation Accumulated ~controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  surplus difference  reserve  reserve losses interests equity
HkhE Pl
RiRE ERLMR fihaE
k% ROER B RRER BE BARB EREH BTEGHER EGER  RHER ARBEE  mER
HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T FET T  TEr  fEr  FET  FET  FET T TEr  TET TET

Balance at fst April 2018 H=8-/\%
MA-AzER 118475 407428 12 - - 189,009 (1,889) 78,13 2481 (170,014) 4691 628,328
Change in accounting policy RGBT HEE
upon adoption of HKFRS 9~ BIZ 9% 2 &3 H

(Note 2.2 RE8(WiH22) - - - - - - - - ey 2 - -
Restated balance at A=S-\EMR-
1st April 2018 BeBETER 118475 407428 12 - - 189,009 (1,889) 78,13 - (167,583 4691 628,328
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EngE - - - - - - - - - (5428 (326 (38,654
Other comprehensive loss ~ EM2EEH
Surplus on revaluation of  BFE(EREE
buidings (Note 13(3) (15) - - - - - - -4 - - AL
Defered taxation arising R Ef:B%
from revaluation B ZEL
surplus of buildings b
(Note 29) Hi29) - - - - - - - (116) - - - (116)
Currency translation EHASER
differences
— Group - k58 - - - - - - (6509 - - - (803 (7,308)
- Associates (Vote 16) - BEAT
(1) - - - - - - 179 - - - - 19
Total other comprehensive  ER2EEREH
loss - - - - - - B 3 - - Y B
Total comprehensive loss ~ 2EEHEH - - - - - - (6% 34t - (548 (4020)  (92332)
Acquisition of non-controlling W5 E2Bkié
interests (Vote 36) (W35 - - - 1,061 - - - - - - 2416 34
Total transactions with ~ EWEAZZA
owners, recognised a5 e
directly in equity gang - - - 1,061 - - - - - - 2,416 341

Balance at 31st March 2019 R=E-H%=R
SH-AzER 118475 407428 12 1,061

189,009 (8215 81,586

(252,961) 3078 539478

0E225 A MERAGEMBHR B

consolidated financial statements. @ IR o

The notes on pages 60 to 225 are an integral part of these 23

(o2}
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT)

n‘/-.r\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbiﬁ

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchase of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits

Incorporation of an associate

Proceeds from disposal of interest in
an associate

Change in short-term bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank loans and other
borrowings

Repayments of bank loans

Interest paid on loans

Repayments of capital element of
finance leases

Interest paid on finance leases

Net cash generated from financing
activities

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

BEXBZEARE

g/ (A BRE

[EANZIES T

EEERE (FA)
IE@/?%E

RREDZESAE

BEME  HERRE

HEME - R RKRE

Z RS 5E
BEETRE  BRT
EYNEEMERS
— B E N REM AL
HER-—BBE QT2
R 2 PRSI
BRRTERED
EWHE

REZEFAREFE

MBEFDHZRLAE
RTERRAEMBEEZ
FR& R
BEERITER
ERNERFE

BEREEN 2ERRH

BMEENZESNFE

BMEEBAEREFE

LENEBBRAA

Note
btaE

30(a)

30(c)

16

16

30(b)
30(b)
30(b)

30(b)

Year ended 31st March
BEFE=A=1—HLFEE

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRIT FET
11,464 (2,853)
(673) (1,094)
10,791 (3,947)
(51,038) (6,488)
80 158
(40,598) (97,203)
(10,507) —
458 -
(2,004) 402
2,578 821
(101,031) (102,310)
57,571 19,500
(13,601) (1,652)
(1,711) (270)
(168) (236)
(9) (16)
42,082 17,326




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEHERER

Note
btaE

Net decrease in cash and cash ReRERBREEERDBH

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZREREFREIEHR
of year
Exchange differences R

Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZHERERHRLEH
of year

Analysis of balances of cash and ReRFERATELEA
cash equivalents ZEEain

Cash and cash equivalents in the REGEEEABRZ
consolidated balance sheet ReRERREER

Bank overdrafts IRITEX

Cash and cash equivalents in the REERERERZ
consolidated cash flow statement ReRERREIEHR

The notes on pages 60 to 225 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

23
28

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1—HLFEE

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\#&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRIT FET
(48,158) (88,931)
37,023 123,585
(2,711) 2,369
(13,846) 37,023
9,117 55,406
(22,963) (18,383)
(13,846) 37,023

FE0E22B B2 MEFARGEM KRR 2B

CEDR
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General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, theatre operations,
concert performance and events organisation,
mobile games applications and video online, artiste
management, sales and distribution of films and
programs in audio visual product format, and property

investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise

stated.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the

Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
revaluation of buildings, investment properties, and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(“FVPL”), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going concern

The Group incurred a net loss of HK$88,654,000
for the year ended 31st March 2019 and as at 31st
March 2019, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$71,971,000. Included in the
Group’s current liabilities were contract liabilities
of HK$13,448,000 which represent non-refundable
customer prepayments that will be recognised as
revenue over the next twelve months through the
provision of film rights licensing, theatre operations,
concert performance and events organisation

services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going concern (Continued)

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2019, the
directors have taken into account all information
that could reasonably be expected to be available.
In particular, the directors of the Company have
prepared a cash flow projection of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months
from 31st March 2019 taking into account the

following:

(i) The Group will continue to generate net cash
inflows from its core operations; in particular,
the Group will successfully release its films
in progress according to its plan and receive
proceeds from box office and licensing in the

expected timeframe; and

(i)  The directors believe that the Group’s banking
facilities will continue to be available given the
good track record and relationships the Group
has with the banks and the Group is able to
secure new bank borrowings as and when

needed.

The directors are of the opinion that, having taken
into account the anticipated cash inflows generated
from the Group’s operations, as well as the possible
changes in its operating performance and the
availability of bank facilities, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve
months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly,
the directors believe that the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern; and thus have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2New and amended standards and interpretation

(@)

New and amended standards and interpretation
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards and interpretation for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing
on 1st April 2018:

° Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions”

o Amendments to HKFRS 4, “Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts”

° Amendments to HKAS 40, “Transfers of
Investment Property”
° HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

° HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related amendments”

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, “Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration”

° Annual improvements 2014-2016 —
Amendments to HKFRS 1, “First Time
Adoption of HKFRS” and HKAS 28,
“Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures”

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in
relation to the classification of financial assets
and the expected credit loss for financial assets,
and impacted by HKFRS 15 in relation to the
presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers. The adoption of other
amendments and interpretation listed above did not
have a material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

(b)

2 BESHHREE®

Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE(E)

2.1.2New and amended standards and interpretation 2.1.2FETRAEMESTERLIR 2 FE (1)
(Continued)
New standards, amendments to standards and (b) EFEMEEKRENEAFREEFLRELE
interpretation that have been issued but not yet B 2 #a]ER ~ ERIEET R 72
effective and have not been early adopted by the E
Group

Certain new and amended accounting standards

and interpretation have been published that are not =R

mandatory for 31st March 2019 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s assessment of the impact of these new

standards and interpretation is set out below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BBV EER S 3R 2185

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BBIIEEREERE 952 EFT

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BERMEREENE10HKR
BEBGTHERZE 28 57 2187

HKFRS 16 (Note i)
BBV BRELERE 1655
(Hiati)

HKFRS 17
BBMBRELREAT7R

Definition of a Business

EBzER

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

ERERMEZRANTENT

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

REEHEABENRREELEZBZ
EEHESEE

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts
RERE#
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TR RAEETE ER KRR
HERBEZZ2-NF=
A=1t—HZREHEEREHE
M DARBARERFERM - T
I AEEHZEHMER R 2R
ZEBETL

T2 ©

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
REUTHESZ#
A% iz 5 BE B R 4 3

1st January 2020
—E-_E§—-H—H

1st January 2019

—E-N&—-A—H

Note

BfaE

1st January 2019
—2-hF—-A—H

1st January 2021
—2=-%-A-8H



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretation

(b)

e R R MR

2 BESHHREE®

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and (b)
interpretation that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

BEBSTTENE1HER
BB ERE 8 215

Amendments to HKAS 19
ERETTEDE 1958 2185

Amendments to HKAS 28
BBETERZE 285 2185

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
B8 (BB ERE2E
ZE®) 5235

Annual Improvements 2015-
2017 Cycle

“E-AFEZE-LFEHZ
FEDGERE

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
“E-N\FHBREZ

BESAEZR

Note: To be announced by HKICPA

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new

standards and interpretation is set out below.

(R

Definition of Material

ERZER

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

&I HE - BB EE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures
REENRAREELE 2 RAER

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FREBRBERE 2 FHREM

Improvements to HKFRSs

BRMBREERERE

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting
RAER] 2 A R B AE SR

RREEE)
21.2H AT RAEEITERILIR R FE(7E)

BB M8 AR LKA X EBAFIE
PR ZHETER ~ ERIIET R %

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
RUTHERZ#
FA%ia iz 5 BE R R & 3
1st January 2020
“E-Z¥—-A—H
1st January 2019
“E-NE—-A—H
1st January 2019
—ZE2-Nh¥—-A—H
1st January 2019
“E-NE-A—H

1st January 2019

—EF-N&—A—H

1st January 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2.1.2New and amended standards and interpretation
(Continued)
New standards, amendments to standards and

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

interpretation that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition
of a lease, recognition and measurement of
leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial
statements about the leasing activities of both
lessees and lessors. A key change arising from
HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will
be accounted for on the consolidated balance
sheet for lessees.

The Group is a lessee of various land and
buildings which are currently classified
as operating leases. The Group’s current
accounting policy for such leases is set out in
Note 2.27 with the Group’s future operating
lease commitments, which are not reflected in
the consolidated balance sheet, falling due as

follows:

Within 1 year —FR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RWEBEEE)

21.2FETRAEEETERILIR R FE (/)

(b) EEfH{E AR EM AR EEKRELE
BERA 2 FETER - ERIEET R 2
()

(i)

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 ZR—EEBVRAE

years

ZRAEEF

Later than 5 years

tENEBEERAE

BEEMBHRELEASE
Eizh-o
BEEMBRELEDFI65
EBE MIEE2EER - H
E2EARTE  URFE
BB REAE 2REBA
BARBEAEEESH A
HEMBIERA - BB
REENE16RELEZ2TE
SEAEBAER AL E
EHERGEEERBRN
ABR°

16 5%

rEBRREIBAKER
EvETIRBET 2AA
A REBHNRZEHREN
WIT S BE &P R M
227 MAKBERRZEE
HEREWENGEEES
BERPRB EEEEZZ
HERMNT

2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
8,605 6,926
48,321 27,817
105,167 55,607
162,093 90,350




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2New and amended standards and interpretation
(Continued)
New standards, amendments to standards and

(b)

interpretation that have been issued but not yet

effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group (Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the
accounting treatment of leases and will in the
future no longer allow lessees to recognise
certain leases outside of the consolidated
balance sheet. Instead, when the Group is the
lessee, almost all leases must be recognised in
the form of an asset (for the right of use) and
a financial liability (for the payment obligation).
Thus, each lease will be mapped in the

Group’s consolidated balance sheet.

Short-term leases of less than twelve
months and leases of low-value assets are
exempted from the reporting obligation.
The new standard will therefore result in an
increase in assets and financial liabilities
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet.
As for the financial performance impact in
the consolidated income statement, rental
expenses will be replaced with straight-line
depreciation on the right-of-use asset and

interest expenses on the lease liability.

The combination of the straight-line
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the
effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge
to profit or loss in the initial years of the lease,
and decreasing expenses during the latter part
of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 New and amended standards and interpretation

(b)

(Continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation that have been issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The new standard is not expected to apply
until the financial year ending 31st March
2020.

Management has performed a preliminary
assessment on the implementation of HKFRS
16 and the initial results indicated that it
would not result in any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of
operation except for the increase in right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, as well as
the increase in depreciation expenses and
interest expenses being off-set by decrease in
rental expenses. The adoption of HKFRS 16
would also not affect the Group’s total cash

flows in respect of the leases.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the provision
for an onerous contract would be reclassified
as lease liability in the consolidated balance

sheet.

Other than those analysed above, management
does not anticipate any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations upon adopting the above new standards,
amendments and interpretation to existing

standards that not yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” on the

Group’s consolidated financial statements.
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39
that relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge

accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1st April 2018
resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.13. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 9, comparative figures have not been
restated. The reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new impairment rules are therefore
not reflected in the restated consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st March 2018, but are recognised in
the opening consolidated balance sheet on 1st April
2018.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Classification and measurement
On 1st April 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has
assessed which business models apply to the
financial assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories. The main
effects resulting from this reclassification are

as follows:

Closing balance at
31st March 2018 - HKAS 39
#30i
Reclassify equity investments
financial assets to financial STABRRZHKERE
assets at FVPL

Opening balance at 1st April
2018 — HKFRS 9
B

pZ2—-N\F=ZA=1+-H
HRRR - FEGHER

BREREH M HERE
from available-for-sale (‘AFS”) ~ BEEH2EARLAE

RZZ-N\E@A—-AHN
Rk - FEMBREER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VeV

e PR ERR MR

2 EESHRREE#

2.2 ErBFESRE(E)
22(a)FRRHMBHEERFE IR BT

R /(&)

() DERiITE
RZZE-NFHA—-HE
RIEREBMBHRELEAE
9Oz HE) AEEZER
BoFEBARAEE MR
BUMBEEZEBERENX 8
HUMBTESBABBUHE

HERFIORPZEER
Bl WIEEH O B|EH 2

ZEENT
Financial AFS Amortised
assets at financial cost (2018:
FVPL assets  receivables)
BRARE EE)0 7

FARGRZ AHHE (Z8-N\F:
RERE RERE ERE)

Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET FET
41,922 3,498 124,470

@)
3,498 (3,498) -
45,420 - 124,470




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)  Classification and measurement (Continued)

The impact of these changes on the Group’s

equity is as follows:

Opening balance at 1st April 2018 —
HKAS 39

Reclassify equity investments from AFS
financial assets to financial assets at
FVPL

Opening balance at 1st April 2018 —
HKFRS 9

AZE—\EMA—-AHM
®es — FaEEn
553958

R ER G A R
EEENIBEREANHE
HABRRZHMEEE

AZ2—\FEA—-AHN
ik - FEMBREER
Foum

e R R MR

2 BESHHREE®

2.2 ErBFESRE(E)
22(a)FRBHMBHEERE IR BT
R /(&)

AR E ()
B B A S 3
SmF

Effect on AFS

financial assets Effect on

revaluation accumulated
reserve losses
HHHERE

BEEMGHZ HEHGRZ
4 44 e

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETL FET

2,481 (170,014)

(2,481) 2,481
- (167,533)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)
(@)

Classification and measurement (Continued)
Reclassification from AFS financial assets to

financial assets at FVPL

Certain equity investments were reclassified
from AFS financial assets to financial assets at
FVPL (HK$3,498,000 as at 1st April 2018).

The accumulated fair value gains amounting
to HK$2,481,000 for these equity investments
were transferred from the AFS financial assets
revaluation reserve to accumulated losses on
1st April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)
(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Reclassifications of financial instruments on

adoption of HKFRS 9

On the date of initial application, 1st April

2018, the financial instruments of the Group

were as follows, with any reclassifications

noted:

Non-current financial assets
ERBHEEE

Equity securities

BAES

Other receivables and deposits

HitEWHER S

Current financial assets
RBMBEE
Deposits, trade and other receivables
Ze - EHREMERNE
Equity securities -

held for trading
BAESG-SEEE

Pledged bank deposits
EERRITER

Short-term bank deposits
ERRITER

Cash and cash equivalents

RERERREERR

e R R MR

2 BESHHREE®

2.2 ErBFESRE(E)
22(a)FRBHMBHEERE IR BT

Measurement category

HERMN
Original New
X -] #
(HKAS 39) (HKFRS 9)
(BEETER (BEYBHLER
#395) F9%)
AFS financial Financial assets
assets at FVPL
AfHE BAARETA
NBEE BRrZHBEE
Amortised cost Amortised cost

Amortised cost
- EE)2 N
Financial assets
at FVPL
RARERA
BERZOEERE
Amortised cost
5 )5
Amortised cost
5 )N
Amortised cost

Amortised cost
5 )N
Financial assets
at FVPL
N EET DN
BREkZHBEE
Amortised cost
Amortised cost
B A
Amortised cost

R /(&)

DERE(E)
REREEBMBRELAS
IR KM TAEH D

RAOBEREH-Z-N\F
mME—H  AEEZE/®T
AT I HEMEHD
g82ER

Carrying amount

R
Original New
RE #
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
3,498 3,498
5,918 5,918
37,790 37,790
41,922 41,922
23,500 23,500
1,856 1,856
55,406 55,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected
credit loss model:

o trade receivables from the provision of

services

° contract assets relating to television
operations contracts and film rights
licensing contracts

° other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9
for each of these classes of assets. There
was no impact of the change in impairment
methodology on the Group’s retained earnings
and equity.

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance

for all trade receivables and contract assets.

The Group has assessed the expected credit
loss model applied to the trade receivables
and contract assets as at 1st April 2018 and
the change in impairment methodologies
has no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
opening loss allowance is not restated in this
respect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(a)HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group’s other financial assets at
amortised cost include cash and cash
equivalents, deposits and other receivables.
The impairment loss of other financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured based
on the 12-month expected credit loss. The
12-month expected credit loss is the portion
of lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime expected credit loss. The Group has
assessed the adoption of the expected credit
loss model on these financial assets carried
at amortised cost as at 1st April 2018 and the
change in impairment methodologies has no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The opening loss

allowance is not restated in this respect.

2.2(b)HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers
The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 from 1st April

2018 which resulted in changes in accounting

policies and reclassification of the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The Group adopted HKFRS 15 without restating

comparatives as it has chosen the modified

retrospective method and applied HKFRS 15 only

to contracts that are not completed at the date of

initial application (1st April 2018).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

2.2(b)HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
The reclassifications arising from the new revenue
recognition rules are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March 2018,
but are recognised in the opening consolidated
balance sheet on 1st April 2018. In summary,
the following reclassifications were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet at the date of initial application (1st April

2018):

Consolidated balance sheet REAEEARE
(extract) (®E)

Trade receivables — net B 2 BUGIE — F5

Contract assets BREE

Receipts in advance TR

Contract liabilities BHEE

2 BESHHREE®

2.2

BERREH (F)

220)FEHMBHEERE 150 EFE

HKAS 18
carrying
amount
31st March
2018
ERgEn
185
RIZ—I\FE
=R=+—-HZ
R &
HK$°000
FET

24,843

25,458
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
2.2(b)HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)
Presentation of assets and liabilities related to

contracts with customers

The Group has also voluntarily changed the
presentation of certain amounts in the consolidated
balance sheet to reflect the terminology of HKFRS
15:

° Contract assets recognised in relation to
television operations contracts and film rights
licensing contracts were previously presented

as part of trade receivables.

° Contract liabilities in relation to film royalty
deposits received from customers derived
from film rights licensing contracts, unearned
revenue derived from television operations
contracts and receipts in advance derived from
theatre operations, and concert performance
and events organisation contracts were

previously presented as receipts in advance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
2.3.1 Subsidiaries

2 BESHHREE®

23 WERAMREIEEHE
2.3.1 B2 E

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to

account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated income statement, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and balance sheet respectively.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

MEAREAREE EEREGE
ZHEER (EEERMER) - B
FEEESHBECEBEMESH
BEREZAEHIEE® - WEEHEM
HiEEZER 2B U E LiiE
B ARENHZEREREG
E-MELAREEHEEREAE
EERBREAR  LRNEHER
2z BERFLEFEE AR -

WS BESARBRETZ
EBEHARR -

SEARAERS - GHEREERQ
AERZ 2 ABHWGET T UE
8o REREBERITSHHE » BRIEX
REERBENIEREE LT
EAMERI® - B LA R ZETHBER
CREEEE  RRESEEFR

R QR RA RS 2 R RE
mRRRGEaRER - 2EKRE
® O EREZBRNREERERAE
MFTR e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.2 Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being

recognised at cost.

2.3.3Joint arrangements
Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has both joint

operations and joint ventures.

(@) Joint operations
The Group recognises its direct right to the
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
joint operations and its share of any jointly
held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses. These have been incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements under

the appropriate headings.

(b) Joint ventures
Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method, after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance

sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.4 Equity accounting
Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the

carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency

with the policies adopted by the Group.
The carrying amount of equity-accounted

investments is tested for impairment in accordance

with the policy described in Note 2.12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.5Changes in ownership interests
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control
as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve

within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as

specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.3.5Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss where appropriate.

2.4 Business combinations
The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:
° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquired business
° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from

a contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in

the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)

2.4 Business combinations (Continued) 24 EBSH(E)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the

acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous

equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as
equity or a financial liability. Amount classified as a
financial liability is subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement

are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at FVPL are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to

profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies or
jointly controlled entities that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recognised at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 28 X BBRREHEE)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual

values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of
the lease, or 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10

improvements years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve

are transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and

that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they
are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in profit or loss as part of other (losses)/

gains — net.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets

acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating

segment level.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently

reversed.

Film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. The cost of
film rights is mainly apportioned between the film
exhibition and local or oversea licensing. In the case
of the former, the cost is expensed on first public
exhibition, and in the latter, the cost is expensed at
a systematic basis with reference to the underlying
license periods, which are subject to annual review

by Executive Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production of
films. Provisions are made for costs which are in
excess of the expected future revenues generated
by these films. The balance of film production
costs not yet due at the end of each reporting
period are disclosed as commitments. Costs of
films in progress are transferred to film rights upon

completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.11 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

(c)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

deposits (Continued)

Film royalty deposits

License fees paid in advance and by installments
under licensing agreements for distribution of audio
visual products and sub-licensing of film titles, in
specified geographical areas and time periods,
are accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under the
licensing agreements is disclosed as a commitment.
Upon receipt of the audio visual products and the
materials, the deposits would be transferred to film
rights and the remaining payable balances will be
recorded as a liability. Provision for impairment
loss is made against deposits to the extent that film
rights will not be received and the deposit is not

recoverable in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise its
rights under a licensing agreement because the film
producer fails to complete the film, the Group writes
off the difference between the advances made and
the estimated recoverable amount from the film

producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that film
rights and film royalty deposits are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the carrying amount
of such asset is assessed. Films in progress,
being intangible assets not ready to use, are
tested annually for impairment. Where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRFREBE®R)
policies (Continued)
2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

212 FMBREZRE

Intangible assets that have indefinite useful life
or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.13 Financial assets
2.13.1Classification

From 1st April 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement

categories:
° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive

income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)
2.13.1Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those

assets changes.

2.13.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.18.3Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets

carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.

(i)  Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classified its debt instruments as financial

assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost are assets
that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
“finance income” using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in “other (losses)/gains —
net” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated income

statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.3Measurement (Continued)

(i)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within “other (losses)/gains — net” in the period

in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at FVPL. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “other income” when the Group’s

right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “other (losses)/gains —
net” in the consolidated income statement as

applicable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 2.13 MKEE(E)

2.134Impairment 21345 8

From 1st April 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, other
receivables and deposits), the Group measures
the impairment as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of these assets has occurred
since initial recognition, then impairment is

measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March

2018

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
As a result, the comparative information provided
continues to be accounted for in accordance with

the Group’s previous accounting policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEEHBRFREE#R)
policies (Continued)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13 MBEREE

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March 2135EE_—F—/\F=ZF=1+—HEH

2018 (Continued) BB F (&)
(i)  Classification () D

Until 31st March 2018, the Group classifies
its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables
and AFS financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determined the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period; otherwise,

they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. If collection of the amounts is
expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “deposits,
trade and other receivables”, “pledged
bank deposits”, “short-term bank deposits”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

(i)
(©)

Classification (Continued)

AFS financial assets

Investments are designated as AFS financial
assets if they do not have fixed maturities
and fixed or determinable payments, and
management intends to hold them for the
medium to long-term. Financial assets that are
not classified into any of the other categories
(at financial assets at FVPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments)
are also included in the AFS financial assets

category.

The financial assets are presented as non-
current assets unless they mature, or
management intends to dispose of them within

12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@
policies (Continued)
2.13 Financial assets (Continued) 2.13 MKEE(E)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March 2135 BEE_ZE—/\F=ZF=1+—HEH

2018 (Continued) :0b-470 & A6
(i) Reclassification (i) EFTHE

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-
derivative trading financial asset out of the
held for trading category if the financial asset
is no longer held for the purpose of selling
it in the near term. Financial assets other
than loans and receivables are permitted to
be reclassified out of the held for trading
category only in rare circumstances arising
from a single event that is unusual and highly
unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial
assets that would meet the definition of loans
and receivables out of the held for trading or
AFS financial assets categories if the Group
has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or

until maturity at the date of reclassification

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of
the reclassification date. Fair value becomes
the new cost or amortised cost as applicable,
and no reversals of fair value gains or losses
recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates
for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date.
Further increases in estimates of cash flows

adjust effective interest rates prospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the assets. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as AFS financial
assets are sold, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss as gains and losses from

investment securities.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
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Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

(iv) Measurement (Continued)

AFS financial assets and financial assets at
FVPL are subsequently carried at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair

value are recognised as follows:

(i) for “financial assets at FVPL” — in profit

or loss within “other (losses)/gains — net”

(i)  for AFS financial assets that are monetary
securities denominated in a foreign
currency — translation differences related
to changes in the amortised cost of the
security are recognised in profit or loss
and other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive

income

(iii) for other monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as AFS financial

assets — in other comprehensive income.

Dividends on financial assets at FVPL and AFS
equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss as part of revenue from continuing
operations when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Measurement (Continued)

Interest income from financial assets at
FVPL is included in the “other (losses)/
gains — net”. Interest on AFS securities, and
loans and receivables calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of

revenue from continuing operations.

Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. In the case of
equity investments classified as AFS financial
assets, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are

impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

v)
(@)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Impairment (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

2.13.5Accounting policies applied until 31st March
2018 (Continued)

v)
(b)

Impairment (Continued)

Assets classified as AFS

If there is objective evidence of impairment
for AFS financial assets, the cumulative loss
- measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit

or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments
that were recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss in a subsequent

period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as AFS financial assets increases in a
subsequent period and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

profit or loss.

v)
(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet the
criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are

presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade and other receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of

three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in

current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the

reporting period.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

2.21

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

2 BESHHREE®

2.20 &

BEATRAABANREE 2R
AR o FEERERBERAE
PIBR  FTERIB(HIBRR Z M A)
SR EEEAEERAERR
REREEPBRGSRERAE

N
a0

BESBERARBAE  BRIFAEH
BREFRUHENTEEELEESR
HHARKD 1218 B &5 ERIER

S

S

o

2.21 EERE

Wi BEREESEREE (X
ZEEFER-RREBUERTH
FRERSZIHE)BEMRE2—
BREBRIEEREETAZSEE
ZHA  BEEZZEEAHLEE
B RFRERZRHEERL -

FREREERAEREEEHE

ZEBERAHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

(a)

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entity operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely

through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and

losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the consolidated balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension

schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in
a mandatory provident fund scheme and another
defined contribution plan. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

The group companies in Mainland China participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities for
its employees in Mainland China and contribute
to these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated
by the relevant government authorities. The
government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these plans. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit

expenses when they are due.

Other employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service payment that are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. These obligations
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of

the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by

reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions

(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a

specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a

specified period of time).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE

2 BESHHREE®

2.24 DBRMSERZ ™R

(a)

Llfg 2 HLIR (5B BEZ T
x5

REEFRAE-HUAEREE - UR
NRE®R ZHEMETE - RIBEZS
g BRWHES 2RBEUMERE
SEEZTABRE) ZRE-E
ERBREERTRREM R MRS
MARENEIRERN - BERE
RANRESESERTERENAR
HEE :

BEEMAmSREBESE  F
MERZRE

s THEEFRMBRBEREDEXR
ERBRENSE  fIUR
Mggn - HEHRRBEERE
TEREEERERR R

s BREEMFABERHzZZE
(BB EREFEINEE
RHEAFERD)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions among Group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

in the parent entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEgHBRFEESE@

policies (Continued)

2.25 Provisions and contingent liabilities 225 BERKRARAR
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a EREERBEStMEEREZ
present legal or constructive obligation as a result EEREEEE  RUREFEFE
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of BINFRUERER ; RS
resources will be required to settle the obligation; b EH A - BRI E - BN E
and the amount has been reliably estimated. FhARRLEETIEMER ©

Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, MEZERUSE  AEEREE
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in EUMESZ o MEEZEREEET
settlement is determined by considering the class HRIMEE - ERE—BEER
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised ez —EEEREERZ
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect T eEMEEK - I7BRREE -

to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the BEDRBITEEEHIERS 2
expenditures expected to be required to settle the REFE  ZHRERUERRTS
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current HEBKEEEZTMRZEEZ
market assessments of the time value of money and HERBZBAINRITE - BEEE
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in 3B A Mg Nz B E AR AR 2
the provision due to passage of time is recognised e

as interest expense.

Provision for an onerous contract is recognised EETERE TN E &K AE
when the unavoidable costs of meeting the BITE FT ST 15 I ST T 28 B A B2 U5
obligations under the contract exceed the economic BEEEE - SRNTAEZKA
benefits expected to be received. The unavoidable ABRRENNREKAFEE  BIE
costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of TENR A EIE L T E &£ AR
exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the BEESSE2BESE -

cost of fulfilling the contract and any compensation

or penalties arising from failure to fulfil the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point

in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over

time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of
the good or service. Specific criteria where revenue

is recognised are described below.

Revenues from television operations

Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues arranged under
fixed-price contracts. Revenues are recognised
on a straight-line basis over the contract periods
which generally coincide with when the relevant
channels are broadcasted. The customer pays the
fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the
services rendered exceed the payment, a contract
asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the

services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
Film exhibition income

Film exhibition income is recognised when the film
is exhibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Revenues from licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights

Revenues from the licensing and sub-licensing of
film rights is recognised upon delivery of the master
materials of films in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts. The customer pays
the fixed amount based on a payment schedule.
A contract liability is recognised for the payments
made by customers before control of the film rights

is transferred to the customer.

Revenues from theatre operations

Revenues from theatre operations mainly comprise
income from box office takings, which is recognised
when the services are rendered to the buyers. A
contract liability is recognised for the payments
made in advance by customers until the customers

utilise the amounts paid for services.

Revenues from concert performance and events
organisation

Revenues from concert performance and events
organisation are recognised when the performances
and events are completed. A contract liability is
recognised for the pre-sale payments received from

customers until the performances are rendered.

e R R MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

Revenues from the provision of artiste
management services

Revenues from the provision of artiste management
services are recognised when the services are
rendered. Payments for artiste management
services are not due from the customers until the

services are completed.

Revenues from the sales and distribution of
audio visual products

Revenues from the sales and distribution of audio
visual products are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to customers and the customers
have accepted the products, the customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of products. Payment of
the transaction price is due immediately when the

customer purchases the products.

Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is
recognised in the consolidated income statement

on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee
Management fee income is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(k)

("

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost (2018: loans and receivables) calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Interest income is presented as “finance
income” where it is earned from financial assets

that are held for cash management purposes.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial

asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Accounting for significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods

or services to the customer.

In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms

agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.27 Leases

(a)

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the

minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance lease is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the

lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.27
(b)

2.28

Leases (Continueqd)

The Group as the lessor

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys
to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of
payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed

period of time.

When asset is leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the consolidated balance

sheet based on the nature of the asset.

Lease income from operating lease is recognised

over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will

comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.

Government grants relating to non-current assets
are deducted from the carrying value of the related
assets. The grant is recognised in a profit or loss

over the life of a depreciable asset.

2.27
(b)

2.28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management

3.1

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify and evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.

Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the Republic of China
(“Taiwan”) and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”)
and New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD”).

exchange risk arises from future commercial

Foreign

transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency of the individual group
company and net investments in foreign

operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations whose net assets are exposed
to foreign currency translation risk arising
primarily with respect to RMB and NTD.
Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through sourcing suppliers
denominated in the same foreign currencies.
Management considers the foreign currency
exposure with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of the
respective foreign operations are also RMB

and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the
year would have been HK$1,147,000 (2018:
HK$1,019,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of payables denominated in either HK$ or
RMB that is not the functional currency of the

individual group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority of its
foreign currency transactions in the United
States dollar (“USD”), which is pegged with
HK$ at a designated range such that the
exposure on fluctuation of foreign currency

rate is limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of the investments held by
the Group and classified in the consolidated
balance sheet as financial assets at FVPL.
The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in equity securities, the
investment portfolio is continuously reviewed,
carefully monitored, and diversified in
accordance with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities are
publicly traded. At 31st March 2019, if the
share prices of the equity securities of the
Group had increased/decreased by 5%, the
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$2,183,000 (2018: HK$2,096,000) lower/
higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

3 HMERRERE)
HERBERE)

(a) WABmEE ()

B BFEEG

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow interest rate risk (iii)

The Group has cash balances placed with
reputable banks and financial institutions,
which generate interest income for the Group.
The Group manages its interest rate risk by
placing cash balances in these institutions with

various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Details of
the Group’s borrowings have been disclosed
in Note 28.

At 31st March 2019, if the interest rate had
been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$83,000 higher/
lower (2018: HK$177,000 lower/higher).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried
at amortised cost, and deposits with banks and
financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to wholesale and retail customers, including

outstanding receivables.

(i)  Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and
short-term bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Loss
allowance of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

3 HMERRER®)
HERBERE)

g4 14
EERBRELERERRSSE
Y - USRS SIBR I ES T AW
SHBELHE  BTRVEREST
% URABNHBEREEESNE
BEK - SR EREHRE o

3.1
(b)

EBERE

FERRBUSEEXEE -
FERREREREARSE
HE  EEARTERRE
HRITERARETF R EA
EHAEH 2 EERR (8
AR E BRI K &G
RB)EE - AEEEEEX
FHRRBERFZRITRHY
BHE TEBEAGFES
# FEFRREEREFE
BEHHEZEZRWFIAMERBZ
FERRE MHEMEBAZ
BRRENDABEEFELRE
EEH -

FEEEQREEERER
BRYERFFEERRZEFE
TREEHEE MANEFH
FERRRE=ZEFETZ
HE ABEEUEINRE
BEL - BRREBRERS
HRBERE AT YD M2
BIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has three types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss

model:

° trade receivables from the provision of

services

° contract assets relating to television
operations contracts and film rights

licensing contracts

° other financial assets at amortised cost

While pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was

immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance

for all trade receivables and contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

To measure the expected credit loss, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled
revenue and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract

assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of 36
months before 31st March 2019 or 1st April
2018 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability

of the customers to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets with
known insolvencies are assessed individually
for impairment allowances and are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators of insolvencies include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group,
and customers who did not share the same
credit risk characteristics as the rest of the
debtors were in delinquency of payments.
As at 31st March 2019, their respective
trade receivable balances amounting to
HK$20,868,000 were fully impaired.

Trade receivables and contract assets
without known insolvencies are assessed
on a collective basis based on shared credit
risk characteristic. Based on the Group’s
assessment, expected credit loss rate of these
trade receivables and contract assets is close
to zero. The impact of the expected loss is
assessed to be immaterial and no further
loss allowance is needed under the expected
credit loss model. Expected loss rate of trade
receivables and contract assets as at 1st April

2018 are also assessed to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as net
impairment losses within operating loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line

item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of

trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the
incurred loss model. Trade receivables are
presented net of the provision for impairment.
Credit risks and exposures are controlled
and monitored on an ongoing basis by
performing individual credit evaluations
for all customers. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and the current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. In addition, management
reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for

irrecoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group applies a 12-month expected credit
loss on other financial assets at amortised
cost. Management considered among other
factors, analysed historical pattern and
concluded that the expected credit loss for
other financial assets at amortised cost to be
immaterial as the credit risk is assessed as

low.

Net impairment losses on financial assets

recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses/(gains)
were recognised in profit or loss in relation to

impaired financial assets:

Impairment loss on amount due
BEEE

from an associate

Impairment loss on amount due

from a joint venture BEEE
Impairment losses on other Hith fEGRIE 2
receivables REEE

Reversal of previous impairment

EEE

losses on other receivables

Net impairment losses on

financial assets

e R R MR

3 HMERRER®)
3.1 MERBERGE)
(b) 1EEREER(E)

(ii)

FEU — BB E D BRRIBZ R

Bl —E &g hEREZR

18 0 5% B B4 B URIR 2 R

BB EERE ()

Hittim @ B A 8 2 8
aE
REBH R BERATIIRZ
HteMBEERA12EAE
HEEFR EEES(HA
BRE)DMBERBR - MFE
HEGFERREE  AIRA
O RN B R 2 A B 3
EEZHEBFEBRELAE
X o

REZRTFEINMBEEE
L& 18 5 R

FR - UTAEBRBBEER
BEzEE (WF)REFEE
R

B EEREREFE

2019 2018
ZE—hE —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

117 9,415

550 9,086

4,768 1,283
(360) —

5,075 19,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1
(c)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds
to meet all contractual financial commitments as
they fall due. The Group’s objectives are to maintain
a prudent financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios
against risk limits and to maintain a contingency
plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirement.

The Group meets its day to day working capital
requirements, capital expenditure and financial
obligations through cash inflow from operating
activities and the facilities obtained from banks. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
management maintains flexibility in funding by

maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

The directors closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
position and financial performance to ensure it
has sufficient cash flow to meet the operational
need. These measures include raising additional
capital; extending existing loan facilities; obtaining
additional financing from banks; and realising
certain financial assets held by the Group through

disposal, if considered necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1
(c)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31st March 2019,
and cash equivalents of HK$9,117,000 (2018:
HK$55,406,000),

negative cash and cash equivalents for consolidated

the Group held cash

while the Group recorded a

cash flow statement purpose after deducting
bank overdrafts. Except for cash and cash
equivalents, the Group also has short-term bank
deposits of HK$3,793,000 (2018: HK$1,856,000),
financial assets at FVPL of HK$40,345,000 (2018:
HK$41,922,000) and other current assets of
HK$40,392,000 (2018: HK$44,433,000) that are
expected to readily generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk. The Group is expected to be
able to generate sufficient cash flows to cover its
operating costs and meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months

from the date of these financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

e R R MR

3 HMERRER®)

3.1
(c)

MBERRER (&)
RBEREE (E)
R=ZZE-AFE=ZA=+—H &
SEEFEEREREERELER
9,117,000/ T(= & — N\ &
55,406,000&7T) » MEiiraRE
REXRMSMNKRRTELRR K&
E#BSERERERELER - B
BeREFREEBEAN *EH
TRE R HAR 1T 777X 3,793,000 & 7T
(=Z=—/\F :1,856,000/87T) °
BEARB \BRRCUKEE
40,345,000 T (= & — J\ F :
41,922,000 T ) & Eﬁﬁ nEE
E 40,392,000 8B T (=ZF—/\&F :
44,433,000 7T) - AR A BN RS =
EBRESRAUERRBHESER
AEEBENEEELEZARSRE
LU A B BT 53R 3% B BB R 3R
NRERRZRERAEETHZ
B EAE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Group

At 31st March 2019

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to associates

Obligations under finance
leases

Bank and other borrowings

At 31st March 2018

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to associates

Obligations under finance
leases

Bank borrowings

3 HMEREER®)

3.1 MBRERERGE)
(c) KEVELmMEE (F)

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
—£R —EWF MELE AFERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiET FET FET
£33 |
R-2—-hrE=A=+—A
B2 RHEMEMNRIE 82,115 = = =
FE (B A\ R FRIE 11,638 - - -
MERNEE
144 - — _
RITRAMEE 56,739 1,569 46,180 =
R-B-N\¥=A=+—H
ESREMENRIE 66,379 - - -
FE{THE 1\ R FRIE 1,834 - - -
MERNEE
168 144 - -
RITHE 40,554 1,640 5,151 =




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

3 HMERRER®)
3.2 RAEE

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March

2019 and 2018 were as follows:

FEEEREA ZBEBERRELE
HEH RS MED AR E R R
a0 WRFERZERRBLURD

REFRNARELRER  AEEH
ERBOARKMS 2REHE - [
RERRBRE - BOOHROATRER
BRUTEMBETR  HHEEEL
WADEF o

REHMEANRIT -2 AREN
BEEELRETER o IHEERL
BERERURRESE -

AEBzRBAREEBEEELE
ER20% c A—E—NER=-Z
—N\E=A=t+—HZABEEW
R :

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER

(Note 28(a) and (b)) (H13£28(a) & (b)) 95,118 46,042
Obligations under finance leases MEHRNE B (HF28(c))

(Note 28(c)) 144 312
Total borrowings fEE#%E 95,262 46,354
Shareholders’ funds BRRES 536,395 623,637
Gearing ratio BEEELE 17.8% 7.4%
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amount of the financial instrument of
the Group is as follows. See Note 13 for disclosure
relating to the property, plant and equipment which
are measured under revaluation model and Note 14
for investment properties which are measured at fair

value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial

assets that are measured at fair value and included

in level 1 at 31st March 2019 and 2018.

Assets

Financial assets at FVPL
— Equity securities (Note 20(b))

AFS financial assets

— Equity securities (Note 20(a))

Total assets

HE
BRARBETFABRE

2B EE

— BARZEZ (HZ20(b))
AHEENKEE

— RATE S (e 20(a))

HaE

The Group does not have any financial assets/

liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

e R R MR
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3.3

LRREMEGE)
TREIR-Z-NAFRZZ-N
FZA=t—HEE-RNEIR
B BZAREBUBEE -

Level 1

E—#
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEx
40,345 41,922
- 3,498
40,345 45,420
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the consolidated balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern

Ireland (“UK”) classified as financial assets at FVPL.

The carrying values less loss allowance of deposits,
trade and other receivables, contract assets, cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates, bank borrowings and
obligations under finance leases approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

During the years ended 31st March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers of financial instruments

between levels 1, 2 and 3 (2018: same).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

3 HMEREER®)

3.3

LRREMEGE)

EERMS LEECMBTAZA
REDERGEEER Z2TSHRE
AE - HREVESBREHER
S X8 KR TEERE -
EERBREERBIG - MEF
BERRRUADFRABRRES
ET2ZMERS  AZmSERRA
AR AREEEMBEERA
ZHEHREAERERE 2T
Bt A - -FAE-—R2IA
FREEREBBERATIERILE
MBS ERE(RE D EmXE D
BRARAAREFABERZUKE
o

HRERHREE  #E - BEER
HtbBWHE - EHEE  BER
ZERREER  BHRTER B
ERRITER - EZRHEMEBAR
H - BYBEQTKIE - RITIEE
EmEMENEENREEIHEER
HRnE-

v

BE-ZE-NEFR=Z-NF=A
=t—HBLEFE WEMKIASE
M— ER_RER=ZENER
(ZZ—N\F : MRE) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and

film royalty deposits

As set out in Note 2.11, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each reporting
period with reference to both internal and external
market information, for example, sales forecast
based on expected popularity of the respective
titles, the expected production, sales and
distribution costs budget and the general economic
condition of the relevant markets. As at 31st March
2019, the carrying value of film rights, films in
progress, and film royalty deposits amounted to
HK$163,126,000 (2018: HK$176,176,000). Changes
in assumptions used in this assessment, including
the forecasted revenue, may result in additional
provision being made in the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of other receivables, amounts due
from a joint venture and an associate

Impairment of other receivables, amounts due from
a joint venture and an associate are performed at
the end of each reporting period with reference to
the expected recoverability of other receivables,

performance of the joint ventures and associates.

The 12-month expected credit loss was applied.
Management considered among other factors,
analysed historical pattern for the expected credit
loss for of other receivables, amounts due from a

joint venture and an associate.

According to the management’s assessment in
respect of the carrying value of other receivables
and amounts due from a joint venture and an
associate, impairment losses of other receivables
amounted to HK$4,768,000, amount due from a
joint venture amounted to HK$550,000 and amount
due from an associate amounted to HK$117,000
were recognised respectively in the consolidated
financial statements during the year ended 31st
March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

5 Revenue and segment information 5
Revenue L § =
Television operations EREK
Film exhibition and film rights licensing and ~ E &M IR Kk E & fRAE
sub-licensing = R ER
Theatre operations EACE ¥ S
Concert performance and events BIREREWIE

organisation
Mobile games applications and video online FH#HEEERARERK
TERRIE

Artiste management EAERE

Sales and distribution of films and programs U EZERFRHEERET

in audio visual product format BEFREE
Other income Hftgr A
Rental income from investment properties REMEHESWKA
(Note 14) (KiaE 14)
Management fee income EEBERA
Dividend income B 2 U A
Others Hith

The chief operating decision makers have identified as
the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors
have determined the operating segments based on the

Group’s internal reporting.

W i B 53 BB |
2019 2018
—B-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
49,160 41,495
23,856 30,743
23,849 24,347
13,247 15,191
8,225 931
2,027 860
30 933
120,394 114,500
7,180 8,870
245 245
2,486 1,912
2,614 2,146
12,525 13,173
132,919 127,673

AEEATESHERBEIELERR
o HTESHEHNAKE 2 AFPIRE
AHEER - DEERREHEBIRE o
HITESEERTEB 2R HREEE

R EK 2\ 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st March 2019, the Group operates
in eight business segments:

—  Television operations

—  Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-

licensing
—  Theatre operations
—  Concert performance and events organisation
— Mobile games applications and video online
—  Artiste management

— Sales and distribution of films and programs in

audio visual product format

—  Property investment

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

2Rk 9EEE =)

REE-Z2-NAF=ZA=1t—-HLHF

B

 AEEEE EEHK D

RS S

BY R R B IR RS

SRS S

EIEEREWED

FHEEERERRERTIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 IWR9BEE =)

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

The segment information for the year ended 31st March

2019 by each principal activity is as follows:

BEIBREHIIZBE-T-NEF=

B=+—HIEFEESHERNT :

Sales and
distribution
Film of films and
exhibition Mobile programs in
and film games audio visual
rights Concert applications product
licensing and performance  and video format
sub-licensing and events online WEEER
Tolevision ~ EEHM  Theatre organisaton  FEEE Miste  BAHE  Property
operations ~ REFME  operations FEE  EREL management  REFEE  investment Group
BREE  BERER  FREE  REMED  REAWE  BAER REE  WERE 550
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note (b)
i)
Seqment revenue Al 49,160 23,856 23,849 13,47 8,205 201 30 - 120,30
Reportable segment loss)/proft 12378(68) /A% (192) (32057 (9,259 (6,008)  (15,584) 1,23 (354) 06 (62629)
Reportable seqment assets BER %871 159,707 65,208 449 1,356 158 20215 484 5a6T4
Reportable seqment izbltes PEE DR (18657 (61,809)  (74,669) (2716) (B3 (1800 (LM1) (26560  (185757)
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1%  BERRfEiTE
equipment and amortisation of HREELHE
leasehold fand and fand use rights ThEREZES (374 63 (3000 (308) 96) () (366) - (4,366)
Fair value gains on revaluation of EffRENE A ABYE
investment properties - - - - - - - 4,076 4,076
Amortisation of fim rights EZERy (15,610) (7,624) - - - - - - (32
Provision for impairment of fim rights, ~ EFAtE » EXPEYR
films in progress and fim royalty EYhEReRE
deposits A - (2400 - - - - - - [9400)
Provision for an onerous contract BEANBE - - (2,284) - - - - - (2,284)
Share of loss of an associate Eft-BHENTRHE - - - - [10492) - - - [{0492)
Impaitment loss on amount duefrom - EREARRE,
an associate HEEE - - - - (117) - - - (117)
Impaiment loss on amount due froma~ EH-BAELE5EL
joint venture HEEE - - - - (550) - - - (550)
Impairment losses on other recelvables  EftENFEZESE - (460) - - (1,308) - - - (1,768)
Reversal of previous impaiment losses BB AAIEfENGEZ
on other receivables HERE - - - - 30 - - - 30
Finance costs HEHA - - (905) - - - - - (905)
Addtions to property, plant and FENE BERRE
equipment 14 - 59,392 - - - 789 262 60,457
Aditions to fim rights, fim n FEEYIE REME
progress and film royalty deposits FRETNERE 12,086 28,300 - - - - - - 41,286
Disaggregation of revenue from HEFRNZARYA
contracts with customers
Timing of revenue recognition: Billig 2B
Atapoint n time WEERE - B 28 1 8,225 2001 Kl - 24
Over time R-REER 49,160 - - - - - - - 160
49,160 23,856 23,849 13,247 8,225 2021 30 - 120,394
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

5 IWR9BEE =)

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March BEFEZHE SO Z2BEZE_T—N\E=
2018 by each principal activity is as follows: B=1+—HLEFESHELRNT :
Sales and
distribution
Film of films and
exhibition Mobile programs in
and film games audio visual
rights Concert  applications product
licensing and performance  and video format
sub-lcensing and events onling NEEER
Teleison ~ EZHB  Theate omgamisaon  FHEE Mise  FAEE  Propery
operations  REZME  operations HBE  EAES management REAEY  investment Group
EREE  RIRER  ZREE REMED RESGE  EAER RER  UERE A5E
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$000
A7 &1 A1 AT 2 &1 7A7 AT A1
ot )
(Wi t)
Seqment revenue Gk 62} 41,495 30,743 24,347 15,191 931 860 93 - 11450
Reporable seqment (oss)proft T2HA8(5E) /18 060 6% Qo) L&) @0 @ (5 23 (6
Reportable seqment assets TERAPEE 4528 197,089 6,183 20,807 1,263 6,310 20883 T2 550,255
Reportable seqment izbltes TERABER (20495 (5595 (18131)  (13389) (1,214) (221) (1855 Q1517 (137422)
Depreciation of property, plantand 4% BERRfE2ITE
equipment and amortisation of WREELHR LY
leasehold fand and fand use rights FRE S (395) (576) 049) 99) (317) - (379) - (,715)
Fal value gains on revaluation of EfiRENE,
investment properties MEhs - - - - - - - 19,309 19,30
Amortisation of fim rights EXiERY (15,507 (13,648) - - - - - - (5
Provision for impairment of fim ights ~ EZRERERS - (im - - - - - - (min
Provision for an onerous contract ERANZEE - - (1,453) - - - - - (1,483)
Share of losses of ElTII%58S
— An associate - -ERENE - - - - (3.359) - - = (3.359)
— A Joint venture -BegtE - - - - (1,902) - - - (1,902)
Provision for impairment of interestina -4 ‘éﬁ%&ﬁz
joint venture HERE - - - - (28) - - - (260)
Impairment loss on amount due from - EEEAFFEZ
an assoclate HERE - - - - (9.415) - - - (0.415)
Impairment loss on amount due froma i -H4ELE5E,
joint venture HEEE - - - - (9,086) - - - (9,086)
Impairment losses on other receivebles  EfRENEEZ HESE - - = = (1,28 = = = (1,283
Additions to property, plant and R G
equipment 3B m 182 37 1 T - 4869 6,183
Aditions to fim rights, fims n FEREME BET
progress and fim royalty deposits EYRETMERE 11,855 91,162 = - - = = - 103017
MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED E iR 4 E N E B AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment (loss)/profit is (loss)/profit
before income tax, excluding unallocated share of
(loss)/profit of an associate, other income, other
losses — net, finance costs, impairment losses on
other receivables, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, and amortisation of leasehold land
and land use rights that are used by all segments
and other corporate expenses (mainly including staff
costs and other general administrative expenses) of

the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in associates and joint ventures, financial
assets at FVPL, cash and cash equivalents and
other corporate assets (mainly including property,
plant and equipment and leasehold land and land

use rights that are used by all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings, amounts due to associates and
other corporate liabilities (mainly including accrued

charges of the head office).

e R R MR

5 IWR9BEE =)

()

AE2/RD ST HRERER 2
SERTBERAER - RBDERTERE
BRRERARD BEFRRFEDH
REZ2EFE (BE)TE - FF
BHAXTEIMEATZ2HMD I -
BAEEHTESRENERRA
HEaMBHRR—zh A& -

AEE W Bm - BEERER
DERZ DI 2EEDE -

2K D I(ER), FBRERAE
Bial (&18), FH  FEERSE
e — BB E DR (BR), FE -
Hitp WA ~ HfbEsE — 5 &
BERA - HtEYGRERERRE -
FiEneBfEM 23 - R R&RE
ZIE HETR I ERAEZ
B URABNEEH b
X(EBBEEIRARAEM—R
THRX) °

A 2H D EBEENBIERD BB
ENAREERECES BQ
REFABERZUBEE - BE
RERREBEEURHMEXERE
(EREEREIMER W
HERRBEUAREE LK + i
FTE) °

A2HSBEETBERDERT
BE - BABEARREREME
FEBE(EEBRBRAREE 2B
BH) -
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)
(b) The revenue of HK$7,425,000 (2018: HK$9,115,000)
attributable to the segment “property investment”

has been included in other income.

(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment profit or loss, assets and
liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

5 IWR9BEE =)

(b)

follows:

Profit or loss "

Reportable segment loss A2 D EEE

Unallocated amounts: ROBKIE -
Unallocated other income R EE AU A
Unallocated other losses — net RAoMEAMEE — F5
Unallocated finance costs Ko B R E KA
Unallocated impairment losses on other 7k % it & {th & U 5% T8 R &

receivables K518

Unallocated depreciation of property,

plant and equipment and amortisation

ROEE - HBEK
ZHEUREE LR

B

of leasehold land and land use rights = ith {55 A 2 i 6H
Unallocated share of (loss)/profit of an K2 EFE(E — = AT
associate (E518),/FIE
Unallocated corporate expenses RoBEERX
Loss before income tax per HERBERFYZ
consolidated income statement MRATSHAIEE

tENEBEERAE

(MERE | 2BEMLH 2K
7,425,000/8 T(=Z & — N\ §F:
9,115,000787t) E st AE AU A o

A2/ MED EEREEZY
iR

A2MoER EEREBER
SEBRATEHAIEE  BEERA
BEHRMNT :

2019 2018
—EZ-nE —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(62,628) (36,043)
4,232 1,956
(5,085) (4,065)
(1,720) (286)
(3,000) -
(6,790) (6,157)
(996) 1,411
(7,661) (6,597)
(83,648) (49,781)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

()

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or (c)

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets "E
Reportable segment assets A2KHEEE
Unallocated assets: ROMEE :

Unallocated property, plant and ROEYE - HESNR1E
equipment and leasehold land and DR FAE it K + it
land use rights i FfE

Unallocated AFS financial assets RO HEEEMBEEE

Unallocated financial assets at FVPL RAEIRA RETTA

BRkzZUKEE

Unallocated cash and cash equivalents R2EIRER

ZLEELER

Unallocated interests in associates ROBMABELNRAREE
and joint ventures hECER

Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE

Total assets per consolidated balance #H#&BEEBXRAIIZ
sheet REE
Liabilities afs

Reportable segment liabilities A2KHEEE
Unallocated liabilities: RAoEEE
Unallocated bank borrowings RAOEIRITEE
Unallocated amounts due to associates 2 FEifE( Bk N TFIE
Unallocated corporate liabilities AomMEEARE

Total liabilities per consolidated balance #&EEEBRSIZ
sheet FEN=R

e R R MR

5 IWR9BEE =)

AE2HSBED - EEREEZYH

BR (#&)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
546,974 550,255
199,925 203,645
- 3,498
40,345 41,922
55 112
9,865 11,125
1,823 5,296
798,987 815,853
2019 2018
—ZE-hFE —E-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
185,757 137,422
59,191 46,042
11,638 1,834
2,928 2,227
259,514 187,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Taiwan. The revenues from
external customers and non-current assets other
than financial instruments located in Hong Kong

and other countries are analysed below:

Hong Kong b
Mainland China R El A
Taiwan =)
Other countries HAib B =X

During the year ended 31st March 2019, revenues of
HK$26,304,000 (2018: HK$18,297,000) was derived
from one single external customer attributable to

the television operations.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

2Rk 9EEE =)

(©)

AE2HBED - EEREEZYH
IR(&)

FEEIBEUEER  FERMERE
BEREM - RUREBRAf
BxRZIBEFRERIFRBEE
(B TRRM 22T :

Revenue from

external customers

SEBERKS
2019 2018
ZB—-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
45,293 41,876
38,954 44,215
9,284 9,280
26,863 19,129
120,394 114,500

RBE-_Z-hWEF=A=t+—HL
FE o B 26,304,000 T (=
Z—)\F : 18,297,000 7T ) J3 R
BEREREREBEI Bz —BE—
HERES o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

()

Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Hong Kong
Mainland China
Taiwan

Other countries

58
o B A 3t

(=P

HAtpEI=x

5 IWR9BEE =)

(©)

AE2HoEn - EEREEZY

IR(&)

Non-current assets

(other than financial assets)

FERENEE

(MBEERI)
2019 2018
ZE-hEFE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
456,233 449,907
174,792 141,235
25,960 27,244
22,187 20,934
679,172 639,320
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

5 Revenue and segment information 5 SRS BEE @
(Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with d) HEFEHNEHzEEREE
customers
The Group has recognised the following assets and ALEEER EFENERZ
liabilities related to contracts with customers: ﬁ%&ﬁfé :

2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
F#EiT
Unbilled revenue related to film rights licensing BREEHMERESH 2
contracts PN ES 21,678
Unbilled revenue related to television operations HRESREKRSN >
contracts FEEWER 2,341
Total current contract assets BEENEEHRLE 24,019
Deferred fulfilment costs related to concert ERERSRENIEZ
performance and events organisation IEFE B A B AN 3,511
Receipts in advance of film royalty deposits from REEF 2 EZIRERE 2
customers FE U FRIE 5,358
Receipts in advance derived from theatre ERREKFEZ
operations %ELB(?,"IE 4,429
Receipts in advance derived from concert EEEREWETHFEZ
performance and events organisation ?EH&E»AI,\ 3,661
Total current contract liabilities BHEHNAaERsE 13,448
A contract asset with balance of HK$21,678,000 #6825 21,678,000 B THENE
comprises a significant financing component at 6% ECESF6%MERBERD
per annum.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

5 Revenue and segment information 5 SRS BEE®
(Continued)
(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with (d HEFENEHEEENRER(E)

customers (Continued)

BRESHNEEZWAER

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract

—
=

liabilities
The following table shows the amount of TREJIAFERI WG R
revenue recognised in the current year that HABSNAEBEEBEZH
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities: ZE .
2019
—Z—-hEF
HK$°000
F#T
Revenue recognised that was included in the st AFHENABEERZ
contract liabilities balance at the beginning ERER W&
of the year
Licensing and sub-licensing of film rights % & &1 E &/ M 159
Television operations BHREK 12,381
Theatre operations EACE) S 3,454
Concert performance and events EEEREWNED
organisation 1,040
17,034
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(d) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)

(ii)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Unsatisfied performance obligations

The following table shows unsatisfied
performance obligations resulting from fixed-

price television operations contracts:

Aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to contracts that are partially or

fully unsatisfied as at 31st March

that 29%
(HK$34,746,000) of the transaction price

allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of

Management expects

31st March 2019 will be recognised as revenue
during next year; 26% (HK$31,296,000) will
be recognised in the 2021 financial year.
The remaining 45% (HK$54,767,000) will be
recognised in the 2022 and 2023 financial

years.

As permitted under the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 15, the transaction prices allocated
to (partially) unsatisfied performance
obligations as of 31st March 2018 are not

disclosed.

tENEBEERAE

5 IWR9BEE =)

(d)

R=ZA=+—B%
2HAREITE ?’JE’J&%E‘&%‘

HEFSNEECEERERB(E)
(i) KRERBHERE
TREYEEBEREEEK
EHZRTERBHEL :
2019
ZE—hE
HK$’000
FEIT
D,
120,809

EEEBHEN R=—ZT—h#&F
=R=+—HoEB&HEAE
TEHNZRZE®XN29%
(34,746,000 7Tt ) & £ T
—FEBRIAWER; 26%
(31,296,000 8B T) A=
T FERRZBRTH
45% (54,767,000 7t ) 5 1A
CEICERSFBIZBHR
FEW®E -

RIBE B BIRE LA 15
RER AERBEEE-ZF
—NF=ZRA=+—-HBoERZE
B ) REREHNEENR
SE% -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution

and marketing expenses and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

Cost of inventories (Note 21)

Reversal of obsolescence of inventories
(Note 21)

Amortisation of leasehold land and land use
rights (Note 12)

Depreciation (Note 13)
— Owned property, plant and equipment
— Leased property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of film rights (Note 15)

Provision for impairment of film rights, films
in progress and film royalty deposits
(Note 15)

Provision for an onerous contract (Note 27)

Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental
income (Note 14)

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 11)

Exchange losses/(gains)

Marketing and promotion expenses

Operating lease rental in respect of buildings
(Note 33(a))

Production, playout and origination costs

6 BEHESSZMAX
SABERE - HE BITRTISHE
X ARTHMZZAZIATMT :

2019
—Z-hEF
HK$°000
FET
FERAR(HE21) 612
REFERE
(Ktat21) -
HEthR T FERES
s (L 12) 788
e (Hzt 13)
— BEY¥E - BBERRE 10,690
— HEWE - BEBREE 178
E R (ML 15) 23,234
EFNE BRTIEERE
TR S RERE
(Hia 15) 29,400
BIEENRE (K7 27) 2,284
ZE A2
— BB 1,685
— FRBRE 5
EEHSBAZRENEZ
BHESERX (AT 14)
1,510
EERFIRAX
(BRESZMNE) (Mt 11) 47,506
EREE () 2,670
miGHEEREERX 4,618
BFZREHNHES
(K15t 33(a)) 8,514
BUE - BRRIBERAE 10,877

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FHET

1,716

(933)

788

7,745

339
29,155

17,175

1,453

1,660

90

2,210

47,877

(19,206)

9,507

7,424
13,801

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥k

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

Other (losses)/gains - net

Fair value gains on revaluation of investment
properties (Note 14)
Fair value losses on financial assets at FVPL

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment — net (Note 30(c))

Impairment losses on AFS financial assets
(Note 20(a))

Finance (costs)/income - net

Finance income
— Interest income on short-term bank
deposits
— Interest income on loans to a third party
and an associate
— Interest income from the financing
components of contracts with customers

Finance costs
— Interest on bank and other borrowings
— Interest element of finance leases

Finance (costs)/income — net

7 R(BIR) hE - BH

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
BAREVEZD RERS
(Hiat 14) 4,076 19,309
RARBEFABRZRZIH
EEZAREBEEE (5,075) (4,089)
HEYI  HBEREEZ
(F518) W= — F8
(H1a£ 30(c)) (10) 74
Al HE R K& E R EEE
(H1aF20(a)) - (50)
(1,009) 15,244

8 (MERE) HBEBA - F

#
2019 2018
ZE—-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET
HEBKRA
— BHRTERZ
FIEYA 769 298
— BE=Ak—BEEgE
DNEIERZRE WA 510 523
— EHEFAAREMARDD
Z R B U A 1,299 =
2,578 821
mEEE
— ROTREMBEZFRE (2,616) (270)
— BERYZFEEH (9) (16)
(2,625) (286)
(MERE) MERA - 3
] (47) 535

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax expense 9
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit
for the year. Taxation on other jurisdictions’ profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the locations

in which the Group operates.

Current income tax BOEA AT 1S 8¢
— Overseas corporate income tax — BIMEERTBR
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFEBEEE
Total current tax ERMEEE
Deferred income tax (Note 29) IEREPTISHL (Ka£ 29)
Income tax expense RS IRFA

e R R MR

FRhiG B3
EBREBIZBEANMGEERBAEN
BE16.5% (ZZF—/\F : 16.5%) 5=
BE  Hitb e A B EEBR B 2R AIRR
FRMGFTERBR AR EB LS EHK
FRTEH 2 BATRI R H -

2019 2018
—B-hE —B-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
554 719

- (20)

554 699

4,452 743
5,006 1,442
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

10

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Share of losses of a joint venture and
associates accounted for using the equity
method

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5% (2018:
16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in other
countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses

Over-provision in prior years

Tax charge

Loss per share
(a) Basic

9 FrEMEAX =

REEZBRFTTE
RABEBREMAE 2 EmBifH =8

SHAEE 2B EERE

mE :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
FF B RMETEER (83,648) (49,781)
DIEREREARZ
—BEELER
AN o | 11,488 3,844
(72,160) (45,937)
BFE16.5% (ZZF—)\F :
16.5%) 5T & 2 FiE (11,906) (7,580)
BB TEFRE2
2E (4,069) (2,073)
BEFRHUA (2,696) (4,565)
A B 4,138 5,218
WHERELEREHEEZ
HIEEE 19,849 12,441
B HBERER S
HIEEE (310) (1,979)
BEFEBRERE - (20)
RIRFA 5,006 1,442
10 BRI\

(a)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing

the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$85,428,000 (2018: HK$49,159,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,923,739,000 (2018: 5,923,739,000) in issue during

the year.

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31st
March 2018 and 2019 are the same as the basic
loss per share as the potential additional ordinary

shares are anti-dilutive.

%
BREXRNEEREAATNEES A
FE 1% & 885,428,000 T (= &
— J\ 5 : 49,159,000 7t ) Bk KA
FAEBTEBRMNEFLHE
5,923,739,000 fF (= & — \ &£ :
5,923,739,000 f% ) 5T &

(b) &
HREEHEEBERARBEN
FE - ”ﬁ&%i?-__g NERZZ-Hh

tENEBEERAE

FZA=+—HLEFEZBREE
BRESREAEEMER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses

Wages and salaries

Pension costs — defined contribution plans

(a)

TEREE

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2018: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining
two (2018: two) individuals during the year are as
follows:

Basic salaries, allowances and other
benefits in kind
Pension costs — defined contribution

plans HE

Both of the individuals’ emoluments fell within the
band of HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000.

During the years ended 31st March 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
three (2018: three) directors or the two (2018: two)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office.

EXHE  BUR
HitbE W Fa
BAEHA — REEK

1 &

RAEHRAS — REMKETE

(a)

e R R MR

btk
2019 2018
—S-nE  —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
43,654 43,459
3,852 4,418
47,506 47,877
hfiREHFHAL

FR AEBRVRSHMA L
P =ZB(ZE-—N\F . =R)AE
= FEZHMEERLEXEN 2D
MR - FRBAHEN T HER
Z2(ZE-N\F  WMB)ESFHFHMHA
TEEmT :

2019 2018
—ZE-hFE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
3,027 2,768

18 18

3,045 2,786

ZE ALz <& E % 1,000,001
8 ITE 2,000,000 T ©

REEZE-ZE-NFR-ZE-N\F=
A=t—-HLEFE  FEENED
ZH(ZEB-N\F ZR)ES=TAM
B(ZE-N\F : MBA)KSHHMA
TXAME - FRMATEERR
MAREEE 2 RESEDBRBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong
Kong under the requirement of the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
(“MPF Scheme Ordinance”). Under the current MPF
scheme, the Group’s contributions are calculated at
5% of the employees’ relevant income as defined
in the MPF Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee per month. The employees
also contribute a corresponding amount to the
MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more than
HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from the
mandatory contribution must be preserved until the
employee reaches the retirement age of 65 subject
to certain exceptions. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administered funds. The total
contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$550,000 (2018:
HK$550,000).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

1 &
(b)

(c)

RigFIBAZ =)

B & I 36
REBCHE(BRESHME) D
HESELSEREMTH2EB
k&N UREE cEEMBTE
E o UESFR -

=20 3 08 kg
FEBERBEEBANMEAE ST
BB EESTERA DT =
REAHBEETRMHEBHMEARE
et E(RESE D - RER
RHRESSTE > AEEZHKIR
RIES E BRI R E 2 B E4EES
WAS%TE  EEhAESEESA
1,500 7T ° fi & & 2 HHE WA E
BEA7,100%8 T AIEETER
MBS EMEL RS E AR -
BRE T HISMERIN - B EIME TR AR
EEZEHEFYERE  BEEE
EFfE6smENRFRA L - B
eHECERRAEECEES
Bl HSBUEECHESEE - &
R AEBERRES T EEL 24t
XA EE 5 550,000/ (= — N\
£ : 550,00087T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 Employee benefit expenses (Continued)

(c)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continueqd)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 per employee) on a monthly basis. The
employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
contribution after 10 years of completed service,
or at a reduced scale of between 20% and 90%
after completion of 2 to 9 years’ service, in which
case the forfeited contributions are to be used to
reduce the employer’s contributions. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay the related employee benefits. The
aggregate employer’s contributions, net of forfeited
contributions, which have been dealt with in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31st March 2019 amounted to HK$84,000 (2018:
HK$90,000).

At 31st March 2019, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme. There
were no contributions payable to the MPF Scheme
and the Retirement Scheme as at 31st March
2019 (2018: HK$40,000 and HK$12,000 payable
to the MPF Scheme and the Retirement Scheme
were included in the consolidated balance sheet,

respectively).

1 &

(c)

e R R MR

RigFIBAZ (&)

B rtBIREEE
REETERERTBARETE(R
REHEI D EHERR o BRIKSTEIAR
BmES T EIRMATMEAREE AR
WS ERMB L EBEMA R
Bert ez EERMHERKER - B
KB EERNBBUERAEE
ZAEB2(E2DEFEE - RER
it BEERESHESAEZE
EEARFE5%EEHER(ESH
BEE1,5008 ) - BERTK
10FREEERZEREMEL
Z100% % AR TEH2EIF
R#%%  RERLHZE20%ZE
WNEEMR - EHBERT > 2
R Bt A AR A EE 2K -
HESIRISEEHNEEXNHE
EERA  BIAREE T EEERE
EEEXTE-—SHER - EREBE
—E-NAF=A=+—HILEEZ
AW ENEE B MEEE
(H0BRE R WAt 5K ) % 84,0008 7T
(=ZZ— )\ : 90,0008 T) °

R=ZB-AF=A=+—8 A&
A] AR A R 15 R IR 5T 8 2 R R A
MZERBHER - RZB—IE=
A=+—8 > tEEMRESTE
REKRFEZHR(ZZ—NF:
EfiaiES st 8RB B A
40,0008 7T & 12,0003 7T 2 5 Bl
FAAGREEEREBR) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

12 Leasehold land and land use rights 12 1R T ihERAE
The parcels of leasehold land are situated in Hong Kong ZIEHE T VRS ERPE RN » I
and Mainland China and are held under medium term RAPPESHEE(TER+F) -
leases (10 to 50 years).
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
At 1st April REA—H 25,720 26,508
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use &+ #th 7 + it {3 FA#E = 6 6%
rights (Note 6) (K1t 6) (788) (788)
At 31st March R=A=+—H 24,932 25,720
Amortisation charge of HK$788,000 (2018: HK$788,000) 68 & F 788,000 8B T(=ZF — /\F :
has been included in “administrative expenses” in the 788,000 B L) EFf AGZEWERA Z
consolidated income statement (Note 6). [{TERA R J(FiEEB) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

13 Property, plant and equipment 13 P - BBRRIE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements R RE vehicles Total
KARELH BF  HEWREKE Rifi AR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr Fér FAr Fér Fér FEr
At 1st April 2017 R=S-tEMA-A
Valuation ffE - 152,006 - - - 152,006
Cost AR 16,593 - 53,984 55,912 6,758 133,247
Accumulated depreciation  ZHTEREE
and impaiment - - (46,779) (53,695) (5,505) (105,973)
Net book amount BEsH 16,593 152,006 7211 2,217 1,253 179,280

Year ended 31st March HECZ-\E

2018 ZAZt+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEETE 16,593 152,006 7211 2,217 1,253 179,280
Additions AE - - 4,974 448 761 6,183
Depreciation charge (Note 6)  HEZR(H:76) - (4902) (1,928) (691) (569) (8,084)
Revaluation surplus (Note (a)  EftESk(H# () - 5,906 - - - 5,906
Disposals HE - - - (56) (28) (84)
Exchange differences EREE 835 264 339 130 44 1,612
Closing net book amount ~ EHIEESE 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
At 31st March 2018 RZZ-\FZB=1-H
Valuation fie - 153,274 - - - 153,274
Cost s 17428 - 60,175 56917 7,054 141,574
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHTERFE

and impairment - - (49,579 (54,869) (5,581) (110,039)
Net book amount BE3H 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13 % - BRREB @)

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
Freehold land Buildings  improvements BR EE vehicles Total
KARHLH BF  HENRRE R AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 T FEr FEr T FEr
Year ended 31t March BEZZ-NF
2019 ZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ~ EAIREFE 17,428 153,274 10,596 2,048 1,467 184,813
Additions HE - - 33,316 26,376 765 60,457
Depreciation charge (Note §)  TEBR(#6) - (5,088) (3,380) (1,773) (627) (10,868)
Revaluation surplus (Note (3)  EftE&a(#:2(3)) - 4,167 - - - 4,167
Disposals e - - - (90) - (90)
Exchange differences ERzE (952) (299) (150) 1,083 (48) (386)
Closing net book amount FRIEETH 16,476 152,054 40,382 21,624 1,557 238,093
At 31st March 2019 RZ$-nFZAZ1-H
Valuation fie - 152,054 - - - 152,054
Cost A 16,476 - 69,168 59,085 6,333 151,062
Accumulated depreciation  3tiE
and impairment KA - - (28,786) (31,461) (4,776) (65,029)
Net book amount BE3H 16,476 152,054 40,382 21,624 1,557 238,093
(@ The buildings in Hong Kong were last revaluated (a) BUEXSERHEAMEZMERG

on 31st March 2019 by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified
valuer, on a depreciated replacement cost basis,
which is the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other

comprehensive income.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

MITERARIRITEEEMAEE
BN =—ZE-—hE=A=+—8H
EMEBEFZEE  DREBEME
RERFEERAZBERERE
ERFEEBEA ZRERELE
FTE  MBERELEMESHZER
BHDEBHMEEKGETAET
BEHREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@) (Continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2019, revaluation
surplus of HK$4,167,000 (2018: HK$5,906,000) has

been credited to the other comprehensive income.

Fair value hierarchy:

At 31st March 2019
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in Mainland China

— Located in Taiwan

At 31st March 2018
Recurring fair value measurements
Properties held for own use:

— Located in Hong Kong

— Located in Mainland China

— Located in Taiwan

RZB-AFZA=+-A
FEMARETE
BEERNE

- ftRER

— iR ER

- iReE

$=8-I\E=A=+-H
EEHDAEE
ST

- RS

- fuRER

- HAE

e R R MR

13 1% - BREREB @)

(@)

(&
RBE-Z-—AF=ZB=+—8H
IHFE - BEGAER4,167,000E T
(=ZZ—\£ : 5,906,000/ T)E
STAHMEERES o

DRELRE

Fair value measurements using

DREGE HER

Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3) Total
HEEXTHRENE  EXTURRME

(E5=8) (B=8) it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000

T#z TET TET

- 134,304 134,304

12,500 - 12,500

5,250 - 5,250

17,750 134,304 152,054

- 135,174 135,174

12,700 - 12,700

5,400 - 5,400

18,100 135,174 153,274

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥k

165



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

(Continued)

Fair value measurements using EREXFTHRRBE
significant unobservable inputs ZoftEEt R
(Level 3) L=l Y

Properties held for own use: HEBRWE

At 1st April REA—H

Depreciation charge TEEHR

Revaluation surplus BEfEER

At 31st March R=B=+—8H

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For the properties held for own use located in
Mainland China and Taiwan, the valuation was
determined using the basis of open market value.
For properties held for own use located in Hong
Kong, the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack

of reliable market information.

tENEBEERAE

13 % - BRREB @)

(#&)
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEIT FEx
135,174 134,956
(4,623) (4,467)
3,753 4,685
134,304 135,174

BB ERERERTHTERA
AR MBI E ARMET 2EE -
ZEMELERARBAMBRABR
BEEEAERZ®  UsGERR
REEER 2 SEMETW

MURATEREREEZFERR
MIEMS  BEDRARHERESE
BE - MUREBZFFEERYE
ms - BRZAEZHEER %
HEDRTEEERNEZEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(@)

(b)

()

(Continued)

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of HK$11,000/sq. m (2018:
HK$11,000/sg. m) and depreciation rate of 2.10%
(2018: 2.20%). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$80,005,000 (2018:
HK$82,755,000) had they been stated at historical

cost basis.

At 31st March 2019, the freehold land and certain
buildings with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$21,726,000 (2018: HK$23,152,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 28(a)(i)).

The Group leases motor vehicles under non-
cancellable finance lease arrangement. The lease
term is 3 years and the ownership of the asset lies
with the Group. At 31st March 2019, the carrying
amount of the motor vehicles held under finance
leases was HK$297,000 (2018: HK$529,000).

Depreciation expense of HK$10,868,000 (2018:
HK$8,084,000) has been included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement
(Note 6).

e R R MR

13 1% - BREREB @)

(@)

&)

TEEERAGEEZEART
BREBEREEEVNEETS
KR11,0008B T(=ZF—N\F : §F
F3K11,0008 ) RITEE2.10%
(ZZE—N\F :2.20%) ° LERHR
FA 4 (B AP IR W AR (B ) 3 2 BB R R
fEHfhEt - BEBNRAHES A
AEMS - TERHEES > AREY
15 o

AEBZEFREEIIER MY
¥ BBEREBEZHEMIMG AR
B B BR o fisl 18 F 1R B £ R AR
EESIER AHEKEEHSERKA
80,005,000 (=& — J\ & :
82,755,000 7T) ©

R-ZZE-HhF=A=+-—0 #K
E{EA21,726,0008 T (= — N\
F 1 23,152,000/80) Z K A ¥EHE
TR ETEFORIMEALER
FrEE iR SR 1T RbIE 2 IE 1R (i 5 28(a)
@) °

AEERBETTHHEREROTH
HESE - AR =F  BEZM
BREAEE - R-ZT—NFE=A
=+—H8 REREHEIFTEZA
B 2 BRHE £ %8 4297,000% T (=
Z— )\ : 529,000/87T) °

T 2 B % 10,868,000/ T (= &
— JU4E : 8,084,000/ Tt ) E 7t A
mEe kA 247 BB X (M
F£6) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

14 Investment properties 14 BREYME
2019 2018
—ZE-hEFE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At fair value BRoRE
At 1st April HREA—H 241,486 218,504
Fair value gains on revaluation (Note 7) Bfiz A REWE (ME7) 4,076 19,309
Exchange differences FE 5 =28 (2,406) 3,673
At 31st March W=BA=+—H 243,156 241,486
The following amounts have been recognised in the LTEBCHRBREMEMRGEESRER
consolidated income statement for investment properties: R :
2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental income (Note 5) HEWA (K1ZE5) 7,180 8,870
Direct operating expenses arising from EEXBESWAZKRENEZ
investment properties that generate rental BELEMZ (ME6)
income (Note 6) 1,510 2,210
An independent valuation of the Group’s investment REBZREVERSEER T 2HE
properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors g%ﬁﬁzﬁ_\iE%Aﬁ*ﬁﬁ{EgﬂiﬁFﬁ
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer ERETEN T ER AR ETEBY(EE -
who held a recognised relevant professional qualification %E}Qiﬁ%%m:i—nﬁﬁ:g—)\
to determine the fair value of the investment properties F=ZA=1+—HBZARE -BAERE
as at 31st March 2019 and 2018. For all investment MEMmMs  BERTHAZRENERESNE
properties, their current use equates to the highest and EAZ% - TRIZMGEZHUARBEDEE
best use. The following table analyses the investment ZIREYEEITDN

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

14 Investment properties (Continueq) 14 BREVEX 7
The valuation gains or losses is included in “other HERESBEEEFAGERERAZ
(losses)/gains — net” in consolidated income statement Hith(8) zE — FRMET) o &
(Note 7). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into SEECBERAREREB 2EHBER
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the BHLEARIAOABERBEER 2EAD
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused EH o KRFEANWESE -  F-HR
the transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 FE=RE2EZ o

and 3 during the year.

(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AREZRE

Fair value measured at 31st March 2019 using
REB-NE=ZR=+-RAZLREHE  DER
Significant other Significant
observable inputs unobservable

(Level 2) inputs (Level 3)

HEtEXTHRRHE EXTURRAE Total
(E=#) (B=8) L h
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements BEHDNAENE
Investment properties: REME .
— Commercial units - located in Hong - BEEN - URER
Kong 14,700 - 14,700
— Commercial units - located in - BEEQ - LRTE
Mainland China At 63,100 - 63,100
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — T¥Bf - UREE 94,460 13,836 108,296
— Residential units - located in Hong - 2Bl - AREE
Kong 52,600 - 52,600
— Residential units - located in Mainland ~ — FEEfI — [UAFE
China i 4,460 - 4,460
229,320 13,836 243,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

14 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

14 BEME#)
(a) DREZRMWHE)

Fair value measured at 31st March 2018 using

RZE-NEZA=+-AzAAENE IR

Significant other Significant
observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
HtEATEREE  EXATUERHE Tota
(E=4) (5=%) 2
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TEx FiEr
Recurring fair value measurements BEMAAETE
Investment properties: REME
— Commercial units - located in Hong - WEBN - UREB
Kong 14,700 - 14,700
— Commercial units - located in - BEEN - URPE
Mainland China it 70,100 - 70,100
— Industrial units - located in Hong Kong ~ — IXEfi - iRE#B 87,150 13,926 101,076
— Residential units - located in Hong - FZE[ - ANEE
Kong 51,100 - 51,100
— Residential units - located in Mainland ~ — BB — fAPE
China At 4,510 - 4,510
227,560 13,926 241,486
Fair value measurements using EHEXFTHRENEZ 2019 2018
significant unobservable inputs LRERE —E—-NEF —E-N\HF
(Level 3) (=) HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
At 1st April HREBE—H 13,926 13,904
Revaluation (losses)/gains BE(E8) WE (90) 22
At 31st March R=A=+—H 13,836 13,926
MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED =S iR €4 E M E B B R A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 Investment properties (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The finance department reviews the valuations
performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited for
financial reporting purpose. These valuation results
are then reported to the chief financial officer and
senior management for discussions in relation to
the valuation processes and the reasonableness of

valuation results.

For commercial and residential units located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, the valuation
was determined using the basis of open market
value. For industrial units located in Hong Kong,
the valuation was determined by adoption of
depreciated replacement cost basis due to the lack

of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of HK$11,000/sq. m (2018:
HK$11,000/sg. m) and depreciation rate of 2.10%
(2018: 2.20%). These assumptions are estimated by
the valuer based on the risk profile of the property
being valued. The higher the construction unit cost,
the higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

At 31st March 2019, certain investment
properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$52,600,000 (2018: HK$51,100,000) were
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 28(a)(i)).

e R R MR

14 BEME#)

(a)

(b)

LREREA

MR HENERERTHTERA
BB B E AEmET 2 EE -
ZEMEARARBOMBEAIR
SEEEABZ®R  URGEBRRE
REEER 2 SEMETW

PAUREBRDEXN 2 EERE
EEUME - BEDRIAHER
EEBE - SUNEBZTEREMM
5 BERESAE2MHER - Bk
ENRFTEEERANELETE °

FEEBEAARGEEZERRT
BRYBEREREVRAEAETES
K11,0008 T (ZE—N\F: 8F
FK11,0008 ) RITEZE2.10%
(ZZ—N\F 1 2.20%) ° HWZERR
FH b (B AP R R (B ) 3 = RS AR R
e fhEt - BEBNURAHES A
REMES  TEZRMS  AREM
& -

R=ZZE-—HhF=A=+—A0 " KA
#8284 52,600,0008 T (=ZZE— N\
151,100,000 BT) 2 & FTIRE
YEERFIERARE B FTERRT
mhiE 2 JE R (ML 28(a)(i) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥k

171



172

royalty deposits

At 1st April 2017
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31st March
2018

Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfers

Amortisation (Note 6)

Disposal

Impairment (Note 6)

Exchange differences

Closing net book amount

At 31st March 2018

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

and impairment

Net book amount

15 Film rights, films in progress and film

R-Z—tFWmMA—A
RS
RETEHEORE

AR EE

BE_Z—)\F
=A=+—HILFE

FYREFEE

wE

R

s (it 6)

HE

WAE (HfaE 6)

[EHZEZE

FRIEESH

BWZ—)\F
=AR=+—H

RS

Z5HEE NORE

R P8R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

15 BREME BEPAERCRER

Mgz &

Film

Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
EXME BEPEN TXREERS #t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
988,457 60,175 44,224 1,092,856
(943,224) (1,278) (86) (944,588)
45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
45,233 58,897 44,138 148,268
10,400 82,067 10,550 103,017
55,617 (38,716) (16,901) —
(29,155) — — (29,155)
(33,411) — — (33,411)
(17,175) — — (17,175)
2,610 2,022 — 4,632
34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176
1,030,609 105,546 37,881 1,174,036
(996,490) (1,276) (94) (997,860)
34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 Film rights, films in progress and film

e R R MR

15 BRENE BEPERCRER

royalty deposits (Continued) igRe =)
Film
Films in royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
EXRE BRGYER IENEERS #a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FEx FEx
Year ended 31st March BE_Z—nEF
2019 ZR=t+—HILEE
Opening net book amount FYIRMEFEE 34,119 104,270 37,787 176,176
Additions RE 14,514 24,796 1,976 41,286
Transfers B 12,377 (4,000) (8,377) -
Amortisation (Note 6) s (Mt 6) (23,234) — — (23,234)
Impairment (Note 6) WAE (H1aE 6) (4,313) (21,767) (3,320) (29,400)
Exchange differences [ERE% (114) (1,525) (63) (1,702)
Closing net book amount F#&IRHERHE 33,349 101,774 28,003 163,126
At 31st March 2019 R-E—hF
=R=+—AH
Cost FRAR 1,052,770 124,819 31,413 1,209,002
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEERIRE
and impairment (1,019,421) (23,045) (3,410) (1,045,876)
Net book amount IRE28H 33,349 101,774 28,003 163,126
(@ Amortisation of HK$23,234,000 (2018: (a) BFEIERME 223,234,000/ T

HK$29,155,000) with respect to film rights has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement.

The carrying amounts of film rights, films in
progress and film royalty deposits have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts through
recognition of provision for impairment losses of
HK$29,400,000 (2018: HK$17,175,000) which has
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated

income statement.

(Z=— N\ : 29,155,000 7t )
BECT AGERERAZIHEHE
KA o

ESME BETEERETMIE
ReCvRELECEBRIARNES
1B 5545 29,400,0008 T (=ZZE—\
F 117,175,000/ ) BEH AU
£  BEGEREDTARSE
WEmRAZ[HERA] -
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A E TS A TR

16 Interests in associates 16 WERRELTFIZHEE

2019 2018

—ZE-hEFE —E-N\#F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAEiT FET

At 1st April RMAB—H 11,121 12,944

Incorporation of an associate — BB & N B A AL 10,507 —

Disposal HE (458) -

Share of losses — net EiLEE — F8 (11,488) (1,942)

Exchange differences EHERE 179 119

At 31st March MR=A=+—H 9,861 11,121

Amounts due from associates iGN 33,720 33,603
Less: impairment losses on amounts due B FEUNESEE A B SRR E

from associates 518 (33,720) (33,603)

Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on 7N £ B FE R B N T ZBEEE

amounts due from associates are as follows: BEMT -

2019 2018

ZB—hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

TFHEIT FET

At 1st April AU A—H 33,603 24,188
Impairment losses on amounts due from FE U — R B & 1 B R IE 2R

associates BEE51E 117 9,415

At 31st March R=B=+—H 33,720 33,603
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16 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a)

e R R MR

16 RBELTZHEZ @)

Interests in material associates as at 31st March

2019 and 2018

Name of entity

Ri2gR

IST Company Limited (“IST”)
ERBERAR(ERE))

MAMO Games Limited
(“MAMO?)

ZURMBRERLT
([RTEEH )

EBERE(ER)ERAT
(“DLCM’)

EBERE(GR)ERAT
(TERER)

Place of business/

country of
incorporation
ERHE/
ERRIER

Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

Mainland China
HER

Percentage  Percentage

of ownership  of ownership

interest interest
GRARER (FAAREER
BAL =h:0:4

2019 2018
—E-n¥F ZE-)\&
28.3% 28.3%
49.5% 49.5%
40.5% Not yet
incorporated

fel ARaE A

IST and MAMO are unlisted limited liability

companies in Hong Kong, and DLCM is an unlisted

liability company in Mainland China. There is no

quoted market price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interests in associates.

(@ R-B—AFER-Z—N\FZ=A
=+—H REXBELAFIZH#ERZ

Measurement

Nature of the relationship method
RELE HEHE
The associate provides playout, post Equity

production, HD-film restoration, &%

channel management and mobile

application development services
ZBEDNRRAEY - BRRE

BREFEE  REEER

FREREARRRS
The associate develops or licenses Equity

mobile games applications Bx
The associate provides programs and Equity

events production services and ER%

mobile application development
services

ZHE NARMHE REDRERER
FREREARRRS

ERBREXDEMEBRBEBHRLDE

ROT - MERERSTEAMIE LT
BRAF  HRODALEDISHE -

BECAERAAEERBEAREDR 2
HAREME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

16 Interests in associates (Continued)
(@) Interests in material associates as at 31st March
2019 and 2018 (Continued)

The Group’s associates have the following

commitments:

(i) Capital commitments

Licenses i

(ii) Operating lease commitments — as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:
Within 1 year —§R
Later than 1 year and no later —FUERAFR

than 5 years

16 RBELFZHEZ @)

(a)

R-B—-AER-_F—I\F=A
=+—H REXBEAFRZHE
(#&)

REBEzBENTABUTERE -

() BERE
2019 2018
—F-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
4,792 5,792

(i) EEEHRE—FEBREA
REFTRELEROIN

ZAREBREESRBELT -
2019 2018
—E-hE —Z-N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
424 727
- 424
424 1,151




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

16 Interests in associates (Continued) 16 RBELTFIZHEE #)

(a) Interests in material associates as at 31st March () R-EB—NhER-ZS—IN\§=A

2019 and 2018 (Continued) =+—H  REXBEAFZESR
(&

Summarised financial information for material EXRENEZHEETHEE
associates
Set out below is the summarised financial LUTHRINEREERE - DR
information for IST, MAMO and DLCM which B M B S R R R A A A Bz B
are accounted for using the equity method. The BERBE o LT &R R A&
information below reflects the amounts presented in PEHERERMEI 2S5 ©

the financial statements of the associates.

IST MAMO DLCM
ZWa REEMER ERAk
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Z$-nE  ST-AF CB-AE SENE Z8-AE SFAS
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT  FET  FET  TET  TET  FEA

Non-current assets FREBEE 2,270 5,629 181 2,136 - =
Current assets RBERE 61,332 41,720 2,045 6,544 96 -
Non-current liabilities FraaE (509) (509) - - - -
Current liabilities REBEE (28,351) (9,365) (11,189) (10,710) (5,781) -
Net assets/(liabilities) EE/(8f)FE 34,742 37,475 (8,963) (2,030) (5,685) -
Revenue g 16,092 22,719 211 4,367 17 -
(Loss)/profit for the year  ER(FE) /A (3,520) 4,981 (6,933) (10,875) (28,991) =
Total comprehensive (loss)/ 2E(F1#E) /%

income L] (2,733) 5,244 (6,933) (10,875) (29,022) -
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16 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

Interests in material associates as at 31st March

2019 and 2018 (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial

information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information of the material associates presented

to the carrying value of the Group’s interests in

associates.

Opening net assets at 1st April

Capital injection

Capital injection from non-
controlling interest

Exchange differences

(Loss)/profit for the year

Closing net assets/|liabiltes) at
31st March

Interests in associates

Interests in other associates

Carrying value as at 31st March

RBR-RZFIEERE
i
FEREREE

EXZH
£R(ER)/ A

R=R=t-REFREER
/(BE)5E

RyeLTz kR

RARBEATZRR

R=R=t-RzkAR

16 HBE

(a)

®n=

DNEIZHR @)
—hER=

Z—I\%¥=H

=+—H REXBEAFRZHE

(#&)

MERHBEZ HIE

FREFEREE DR 2 BERE
HHEAKENBE N RED 2R

BEZH R -

IST MAMO DLCM Total

Btk ROENEE EREg #it
2019 218 2019 218 2019 218 2019 218
SE-nE ZE-\E IZEB-RE 5B IB-AE CE-NE IB-AE CE-NE
HKSOO0  HKSO0  KKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOWO
FET 741 FET 741 FET 7Ar FET FAr
5 RN (20%0) 6773 - - BM
- - - - aW - W -
- - - 2072 - - - 2072
(1 %3 - - B - 756 %3
(3520) 4981 699 (o) s - P (58
M 94 B9 P00 (5689 - N0 %M
082 10617 - - - - 982 10617
19 504
9,861 11,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Interests in associates (Continued)

(a)

Interests in material associates as at 31st March
2019 and 2018 (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information (Continued)
As at 31st March 2019, the Group has cumulative

unrecognised share of losses of associates as

e R R MR

16 REELFZEE@®)
(@) R=B—NER-B—N\F=R
=+—B REARELTZES
(#)

MERHBEEZHIE (&)

RZE-—HEFE=ZB=+—H ' K&
BiEE R RER ZEREE AT

BREANT
below:
MAMO DLCM
ETEMEE fE B i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1st April 2018 R-ZE—-NENB—H 2,030 —
Unrecognised share of losses incurred NAEEEL 2 AEIE
during the year {hE51E 3,432 1,262
At 31st March 2019 R=Z—N%F
=B=+—H 5,462 1,262

There is no unrecognised share of loss in IST.

REBMNZ R B EAREDEGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

16 Interests in associates (Continued) 16 REEAFIZES #

(b) Individually immaterial associates
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in a number
of individually immaterial associates that are

accounted for using the equity method.

Aggregate carrying amount of BRI EKHE A R Z BRE 4

individually immaterial associates

(b)

2B

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s  ANE@FE(L T 5EH 2848 -

share of:
Loss from continuing operations @KL XK B 2EE
Other comprehensive income Hth 2 mE W=

Total comprehensive income 2HEINELEZE

(c) The amounts due to associates as at 31st March
2019 and 2018 are denominated in HK$, unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

LETES EX TN
BT 2 R A B 2
5h + 75 SEE N A B R B B T B A
EATREERN  REATDE
RESEAE o

2019 2018
ZE—hE —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

19 504

- 44

- 44

R=F-NFR=F-N\F=A
=+—R BAMEQRRENE
THME - BEEA - RERRER
B 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint 17 REELXREEXBCHEE

operations

(@) Interests in joint ventures

At 1st April

Share of amortisation of intangible
asset

Share of losses

Impairment of interest in a joint

venture

At 31st March

Amounts due from joint ventures
Less: Impairment losses on
amounts due from joint

ventures

(a) MEELRZHD

2019 2018
—E-nE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
RMAE—H 4 2,188
A E B E s
- (85)
i EE - (1,817)
R—EEELECERRE
— (282)
R=HA=+—8H 4 4
S8 ERNEA 31,969 31,419
B EREECERERERSE
(31,969) (31,419)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint 17
operations (Continued)

(a)

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on

amounts due from joint ventures are as follows:

At 1st April
Impairment loss on amount due

from a joint venture

At 31st March

(i)

REA—H
W —BaEhERIEA
ZRERE

R=A=+—H

Investment in a material joint venture as at

31st March 2019 and 2018

Place of business/

country of
incorporation
Name of entity BEhE/
EfgH B RIER
THEM Co. Limited Hong Kong
(“THEM”) B4

Percentage Percentage

of ownership of ownership

interest interest
ERAEER  (EAAEER
BAl aak

2019 2018
“B-nE —2-N\%
55% 55%

THEM is an unlisted limited liability company

in Hong Kong and there is no quoted market

price available for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities and material

commitment relating to the Group’s interests

in joint ventures.

REELRRSERBCHG

(&

(a) REELRZED(E)
REBEBERSELERIBZRE

FRAZBHNT :
2019 2018
—®-nE —B-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHAT
31,419 22,333
550 9,086
31,969 31,419

(i)

R-ZB—NFR-Z—/F
ZA=+—H REXLE
PRZRE

Measurement

Nature of the relationship method
WERE HERE
The joint venture operates an Equity
online advertising platforms ERL

FRELEEEALREYR

THEMABB B ELmBRA
7 ERMP I ETISIRE ©

MEEXMERAEERNSE
TEEZCIARABEREKX
FRIE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Interests in joint ventures and joint
operations (Continued)

(b)

Interests in joint operations

The Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements with certain independent third parties
to produce films for exhibition and distribution in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. The Group has
participating interests ranging from 20% to 90%
in these joint operations. As at 31st March 2019,
the aggregate amounts of assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
relating to the Group’s interests in these joint
operation arrangements are as follows:

Assets B"E

Film rights, films in progress and BERE BRA
film royalty deposits EXMERS

Liabilities afR

Trade and other payables

Receipts in advance FEUFRIR
Contract liabilities EHER
Revenue =

Expenses X

Loss after income tax BRITEFRZER

The Group entered into a joint operation with HBO
Pacific Partners v.o.f. (“HBO”) to develop, operate
and distribute a pay television channel to be
broadcasted in various countries within Asia. The
Group has participating interests of 40% of results
in this joint operation. It has included its interests
in the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in
the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the terms of agreement for the years ended
31st March 2019 and 2018.

g5 R HEMENRUR

e R R MR

17 REELRRSEREZHR

(&)

(b)

=8y
E

REBXEZER
AEEEETHIE=FTLET
EEEBTH UBREEERE
BRPE R RRE T o AEE
REZEEEEKER20% Z90%
ZSHEEFZ R=ZF—-—hE=A
=+—8B > BAEERZEEEHE
BN GRETERERER
ZEEHSBERENT

2019 2018
—ZE-hE —E-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
103,183 106,678
(376) (60)

- (2,588)
(3,425) —
(3,801) (2,648)
824 7,369
(4,739) (8,940)
(3,915) (1,571)

R & B EHBO Pacific Partners
v.o.f(THBOETEE XK » £
DNZEEXREE KERDH—
BN ESHEEE - AEBREEE
EBEBIONXEZSEER
BREEARBEHEHRARBE=-F
—NER-E-NF=A=+—H
LTFERGRENBRRAZEE
BB WaklXzEs -
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18 Financial instruments by category

18

The accounting policies for financial instruments have

been applied to the line items below:

Assets

At 31st March 2019

Deposits, trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Financial assets at FVPL (Note 20(b))

Pledged bank deposits (Note 19(b))
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)

Assets

At 31st March 2018

AFS financial assets (Note 20(a))
Deposits, trade and other receivables
Financial assets at FVPL (Note 20(b))

Pledged bank deposits (Note 19(b))
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23)

RE

A_E-NE=R=+—H
%S B RHEMEKGE
ENEE
BOREFABERZ

M EE Mzt 200b))
BIRBRITERMZ 190))
RERITER (ML 23)
ReRERRLER (Hi223)

BE

R-Z—-N\§ZB=+—H
AL ERBERE (i 20()
%% B REMERE
BDAEFABERZ

B EE (ffzE20(b))
BEARTERMEZ 19(b))
GHR TR (H1523)
ReRZERRLSEA (H723)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

BENNSZHMBEIR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VeV

e PR ERR MR

MBEITAZEFTBREEEARTIE

15 .

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
(2018: loans AFS Financial
and financial assets at
receivables) assets FVPL Total
e E)
HEZRE
BE(CE BoRE
—N\E : ERK e HARER
REWRRE) HEEE ZHMBEE #xt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET FET FET
12,705 - - 12,705
24,019 - - 24,019
- - 40,345 40,345
23,500 - - 23,500
3,793 - - 3,793
9,117 - - 9,117
73,134 - 40,345 113,479
- 3,498 - 3,498
43,708 - - 43,708
- - 41,922 41,922
23,500 - - 23,500
1,856 - - 1,856
55,406 - - 55,406
124,470 3,498 41,922 169,890




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

18 BRNBSZMBEIR @)

18 Financial instruments by category

(Continued)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BRMMRE
SRz
HBAR
HK$’000
FET
Liabilities AR
At 31st March 2019 R ZE—-NnF=ZA=+—H
Bank and other borrowings (Note 28(a), (b)) IRITR EM {8 & (477£ 28(a), (b)) 95,118
Obligations under finance leases (Note 28(c)) MERNE B (A 28(c) 144
Trade and other payables B R EMEMANRE 82,115
Amounts due to associates FEATES & X B FRIE 11,638
189,015
At 31st March 2018 A _ZE— )\F=A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 28(a)) IRITEE (K2 28(a)) 46,042
Obligations under finance leases (Note 28(c)) MERNE B (AL 28(c) 312
Trade and other payables B o R HEMEMNRE 66,379
Amounts due to associates PE SR & X RIFRIE 1,834
114,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

19 Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference

to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical

information about counterparty default rates:

19 MEREZERER
MARABRRE M BEE 2 FHEE
A2 E MBS TR (B REMY S
R R 2 BRI TR

(a) Trade receivables (a) BHEKIRIE
2019 2018
—2-hEF —E-N\E
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFAET FET
Counterparties without external WIS BT R 2 H S
credit rating
— Existing customers with no — BENEERLHE 2
defaults in the past REEF 4,351 23,468
5 -
(b) Pledged bank deposits L Bl fefol
2019 2018
—E-NnEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {E&FR(EEEHE)
A-1 A-1 23,500 23,500
Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st RZE-NF=A=+—HLERTIE

March 2019 represent fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged
against the banking facilities granted to the Group.

Please refer to Note 28(a)(iii) for further details of

the arrangement.

At 31st March 2019, the weighted average effective R==
interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits is 1.5% (2018: 0.9%).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

ZHER o
=F 28(a)(iii) °

EHRRTER

tENEBEERAE

ZEBEFRRERABRRTZENF
R CEAEAREEMERRITHE
2B E - SHBESHM

—hWF=ZA=+—H ' xEEE
A2 MEFHERERRE
15E(ZZF—/\F : 0.9EF)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

19 Credit quality of financial assets

19 MESEZEEER &)

(Continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank (c) BEeRERREFAREHMRT
deposits 52
2019 2018
—E-0F —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) (EEFR(EEEHEH)
A-1 A-1 10,657 55,065
A-2 A-2 2,186 2,112
Cash on hand EFRE 67 85
12,910 57,262
20 Financial assets 20 MBEEE
(a) AFS financial assets (a) FIEHERBEEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHEIT FET
At 1st April RMA—H 3,498 6,712
Reclassification of AFS financial BERMB B BEREENE N
assets to FVPL upon adoption of ARHENKEEENIEAIR
HKFRS 9 AREFABERZRZUBEE (3,498) -
At 1st April (Restated) REA—B(KEF) - 6,712
Fair value losses transfer to equity HERERER 2N AEEE
— net — 5 - (3,214)
At 31st March R=A=+—H - 3,498
AFS financial assets include the AR ENEEERRE TS
following: £I1g :
Equity securities listed in Hong BEELTRAES  ZHE
Kong, at market value — 3,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

20 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets were denominated in HK$.

During the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group
made an impairment of HK$50,000 on AFS financial
assets. The amount was released from equity and
recognised in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the

consolidated income statement (Note 7).

Financial assets at FVPL

Listed securities, at market value:

— Equity securities - Hong Kong

— Equity securities — UK

Total financial assets at FVPL

EmREE - mmiE
- BAES - BB
— BAESF — HE

BAREFRABRSER
2B EERE

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, financial assets of

HK$3,498,000 previously recognised as AFS were
reclassified as FVPL at 1st April 2018.

At 31st March 2019, certain financial assets

at FVPL with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$24,936,000 (2018: HK$28,873,000) were

pledged as security for banking facilities granted to

the Group (Note 28(a)(iv)).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

tENEBEERAE

20 MESEE®)

(a)

(b)

AR EMBERE(E)
AR EMBEELEBTIE -

HE-Z-—N\F=HF=+—HILHE
B ASERTHEENKEEE
i 7l {8 50,000 % 7T ° %2 IE B &
mEE . WRGRERERZ[EM
(F518) Wam — FREI(MeE7)H®

o
BARERABEERCHESE
2019 2018
—B-AE —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
39,754 41,201
591 721
40,345 41,922
RMBE BT BHRELEREINE -

ERBERAABREENBEE
3,498,000 B tE=—ZE—\FHMA
—BREFDERRAABEITAE
BRRZMBEEE -

R-ZE—HhF=A=+—0 #K
E{E A 24,936,000 T (=ZZF— N\
4 :28,873,000/8 ) 2 & T A
REFAEERZHKEED KN
ERAEBAERRTHEZER
(Mf=E28(a)(iv)) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Financial assets (Continued)

21

(b) Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL are presented within
investing activities in the consolidated cash flow

statement.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are included in “other (losses)/gains — net” in the

consolidated income statement (Note 7).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on

their current bid prices in an active market.

Inventories

Finished goods SR fR

Less: provision for obsolete inventories

The cost of inventories is recognised as expense
and included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated
income statement amounted to HK$612,000 (2018:
HK$1,716,000) (Note 6). No reversal of provision for
obsolescence of inventories for the year ended 31st
March 2019 (2018: HK$933,000 reversal of provision for
obsolescence of inventories has been included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated income statement (Note
6)). No inventories was written-off during the year (2018:
HK$2,659,000).

. REFERE

e R R MR

20 MESEE#®)

(b) BARBEHABRERZMBERE
(&)
BAAESABRSRZYBEER
IIRGERERERZRETE
K o

BAREFABERZUBEEZ
AREZBDFARESRERZ
[Hp(&18) W — F5E I
A7) e
FBRARZ 2 AR EREBEERE
BhmiscRITEANEFE -

21 8

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\#F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

454 179

454 179
BRARXLFAGRERERIBEEK

RIZFEEKAR A612,0008 T (==
— \% :1,716,0007% 7t ) (Ff 55 6) °
E_E-NF=A=+—HLEE I
EREFEZRERE(ZZ—NF:
PRE 77 & = 3 1% # [0 933,000 78 Tt B
FPAGRERBERA 2 HER A J(H T
6) c UEMFERFRMHE(=FT—N
F : 2,659,00087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

22 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other 22
receivables

WA e HHERHM
PR BRI

Trade receivables g 5 EWRIE

Less: impairment losses on trade B BB RWFEIRRERE
receivables

Trade receivables — net BEZEWFHIE — F5

Prepayments TS FRIE

Other receivables and deposits HittEWRIERZE

Less: other receivables and deposits -  Jjif - EftfERREREES —
non-current portion ERB B

Current portion TRENER 17

As at 31st March 2019 and 2018, the carrying amounts of
deposits, trade and other receivables approximate their

fair values.

At 31st March 2019, all other receivables are unsecured
and interest-free (2018: an other receivable of
HK$751,000 was interest bearing at Hong Kong prime
rate plus 2% per annum and secured by (i) first legal
charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value of
HK$18,433,000; and (ii) a separate all moneys guarantee
and indemnity executed by a third party individual).

The credit terms to trade receivables generally range
from 7 to 90 days (2018: 7 to 90 days).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

2019 2018
—EZ-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
25,394 45,711
(20,868) (20,868)
4,526 24,843
2,371 6,464
8,179 18,865
15,076 50,172
(2,668) (5,918)
12,408 44,254

REEBE-NER=ZZE-NE=A=1+—
B ReRkEFZREMEWREIE 2R
SEENRERE o

R-ZZE-AFE=A=+-0 FiEH
thEKREABEAREZE(ZZE—N
F o HMEWKIET51,000 8 TIRES
EEEMZEM2EZFREGFE - W
(i) 2 7B 18,433,000/ 8 T2 B EME
F—AEHR ) R)F=ZABARLZ
BYRBEERRBERE)

BESEWNREZEER RN F7E0
K(ZE—NFE:7E90XK) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

22 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other

receivables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

date is as follows:

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

Over 6 months

BEZE =1 B
PLEA =

BBAEA

The analysis on the expected recovery date of trade

receivables is as follows:

Not more than twelve months after the
reporting period
More than twelve months after the

reporting period

THBHRERR+ @A

BRREHET @A

22 AfRIA - Ee  BHEREAM

U RRIE &)

ERBE AL 85 ERREER
ST :

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBIT F#T
4,351 24,843
175 —
20,868 20,868
25,394 45,711

EZRWHEZFEB KD A H 2

T
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-)N\EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
25,394 38,207
- 7,504
25,394 45,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

22 AftRIA - Ee - BEREM

22 Prepayments, deposits, trade and other

receivables (Continued)

At 31st March 2019, trade receivables of HK$20,868,000
(2018: HK$20,868,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR#E
NTD At

Movements on the Group’s impairment losses on trade

receivables are as follows:

At 1st April AU A—H
Written-off of trade receivables s 2 5 W FE
At 31st March R=B=+—H

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable

mentioned above.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

FEYRRIA (&)
R-ZE-—NFE=A=+—H BEFE
U FX 18 20,868,000 B T (— & — J\ F
20,868,000 % 7t ) B iR B & 5T 1% & 2%
BB RERKRABEETEE -—ZHE

BRSNS RBEF AR -

FEEEZRHEMBEWIHIEZRASHE

LT3 &S #EHE :
2019 2018
—E—-NEFE —E-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
4,664 29,837
8,686 18,309
1,726 2,026
15,076 50,172

AEEE S EUHARESE 2280

T :
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
20,868 20,930
— (62)
20,868 20,868

RBESEAZEREFEERRS LS EE

WK IR 2 BREE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

23 Cash and cash equivalents and short- 23 BeaREFERBAELHAEBARER
term bank deposits THER
2019 2018
ZB-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERKREER 9,117 55,406
Short-term bank deposits EHARITIF K 3,793 1,856
12,910 57,262
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits B4 REZEFESER UK EHETEX
are denominated in the following currencies: LU 51| &5 ¥ 5 -
2019 2018
ZB-hF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FET
HK$ BT 1,358 8,343
RMB ARHE 10,114 46,284
NTD maw 1,409 2,402
usD EYH 9 213
Singapore dollar (“SGD”) N3 T 14 14
British Pound (“GBP”) T 6 6
12,910 57,262
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits REZB—NEFE=A=1+—H  SHET
was 1.69% (2018: 1.35%) per annum as at 31st March ERZ2ERFENEZAE19E(ZZE— N
2019. These deposits have an average maturity of 303 F:1358)  c ZEGFR2FEHHRA
days (2018: 113 days). 303 (=F—\F :113H) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

24 Share capital and premium

(@) Share capital

Authorised

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary share of HK$0.02

each

(b) Share premium

Share premium

194

BE

FREE0.02/8 T
ZETER

ERTRBE

FREE0.02/8 T
ZETER

R0 = E

24 BEERRE
(a) B=*
2019 2018
—E-NnF —E-N\E
Number of Number of
shares shares
’000 HK$°000 000 HK$’000
F& F#EiT FiE FET
15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000
5,923,739 118,475 5,923,739 118,475
(b) BfYEM
2019 2018
—E-hEFE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
407,428 407,428




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 Share-based payments

The Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) in the annual general meeting
held on 1st September 2014. Under the scheme,
72,800,000 options were granted on 29th September
2014 at the exercise price of HK$0.7 per share. Out of
the options granted, 30% vested on 29th March 2015,
30% vested on 29th September 2015 and the remaining
40% vested on 29th March 2016. Each share option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary

share of the Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

are as follows:

At beginning of the year FM
Forfeited R UK
Lapsed KX
At end of the year FR

e R R MR

25 LI RBRZMR

AAFER-_ZFE—WFNA— HET
ZHERRBFASHERRM —BER
RGBTt &8 1) RiBZxT &
72,800,000 BERER == — T F 1
A-t+hBRYE TEEARASROTE
T RHEZEBREESD > 30%ER=
Z-AF=ZA=-TNBEHRE 30%E2
R=-Z2—HFNA=-THIABEBRERT
AWHER-ZBE—ANEF=ZBA=-THLEBERE
B -SHBRERTIFEARMIELR
NAIZ—REBR °

EARTEZBRESHEZBUT :

No. of share options
Year ended 31st March
iRiE® B
BE=RA=1t—HLFEE
2019 2018
—2—h#F —E-N\F

- 56,042,000

—  (56,042,000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

26 Reserves

Share redemption reserve % 17 FE B {3 e
Other reserve Hith A%
Contributed surplus (Note (i) BABER (K (i)
Exchange difference EHERE
Buildings revaluation reserve BFEH#E

AFS financial assets revaluation reserve

(Note (iii) (B (iii))
Accumulated losses R2FTE1E

(ii)

(iii)

Movements of each component of the reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the credit arising from the reduction of share capital
during the year ended 31st March 1999, and the
transfer from share premium during the year ended
31st March 2010.

Changes in the fair value that were classified as
AFS financial assets, were recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate reserve within equity. Amounts were
reclassified to profit or loss upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 9.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &

26 fEfE

AHHENBEEEAREE

(i)

(iif)

2019 2018
ZE-NhF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

12 12

1,061 -
189,009 189,009
(8,215) (1,889)
81,586 78,135

- 2,481
(252,961) (170,014)
10,492 97,734

REBEEBDEBHANGESERDS
Bk o

FEBZ2HABRHERAERE
—hANF=ZR=Z+—-—BLEFE
HBRARBZ-Z-—FF=A
=ST-HLEFEERBERMEER
BEZER -

TEAUHHESHEENAIANE
SPNHMEERERIAR R ES
WEE L EERET o STERIRER
MERMBREENLORRERN

DTEERERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

27 Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is

as follows:

Current to 3 months
4 to 6 months

Over 6 months

B 5 RN

Hitp B FER BT ER

B E=MEA
M= <@ A
B <ME R

27 BHRAEMEMNRIT

2019 2018
—ZE-hEFE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
10,259 2,412
87,559 76,022
97,818 78,434

EERMNRERBRAPZRE DT

T :
2019 2018
—E-hEFE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAEiT FET
6,858 2,081
3,401 331
10,259 2,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

27 Trade and other payables (Continued) 27 B REMEMREE)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

The Group has entered into several lease contracts in
respect of theatre operations. The unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations of one of these contracts
have exceeded the economic benefits expected to be
received as at 31st March 2019. Hence, a provision of
HK$3,737,000 (2018: HK$1,453,000) has been made for
the onerous contract based on the estimated minimum
net cost of exiting from the contract. The movement of

provision for an onerous contract is as follows:

AEEEREREETLZHHES
e ZZEENP HP - 2BITERK
FABEREABEBNR-"FE-—NF=ZA
S+-BAZERLENZ - Mt B
REBITZEN 2B REERFHE
MZEIBEHIEE 3,737,000 Tt (==
—\4 : 1,453,000 7)) B - B5IES
HBEZEBHNOT

2019 2018

—2—-h¥F —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$°000

TFAEIT FET

At 1st April REAB—H 1,453 —
Charged to the consolidated income RS WS RN (A 6)

statement (Note 6) 2,284 1,453

At 31st March W=BA=+—8H 3,737 1,453

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

FEBESZRHMENTEZRASHE
ERREMRE  WATIEREHE -

2019 2018
—2-hEF —E-N\EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiET

HK$ BT 55,166 39,560
RMB AR 41,994 38,528
NTD Ak 658 346
97,818 78,434

tENEBEERAE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Bank and other borrowings and

obligations under finance leases &

Bank overdrafts, secured

Secured bank loans — current portion

Bank borrowings — current portion
Secured bank loans — non-current

portion

Total bank borrowings (Note (a))

Other borrowing — non-current portion
(Note (b))

Total borrowings

Obligations under finance leases
(Note (c))
— Current portion

— Non-current portion

RITEX - BEE
BRMRITER — RBIHD

RITIEE — RBFH

BERMRTER — FERBIH

RITEERE (M (a)

HitpfBE — JEREEMH
(BtzE (b))

BERER

BMEENEEME ()

— RBERH
— JEREED

e R R MR

28 |ITREAMEERMIENRA

2019 2018
—B-AE  —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
22,963 18,383
31,518 21,207
54,481 39,590
4,710 6,452
59,191 46,042
35,927 —
95,118 46,042
144 168

— 144

144 312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

28 Bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases
(Continued)

(@) Bank borrowings
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year and repayable on

demand
Between 1 to 2 years —ZWMER
Between 2 to 5 years MERER
Later than 5 years hER

At 31st March 2019, available banking
facilities amounting to HK$69,727,000 (2018:
HK$71,659,000) granted by banks to the Group are
secured by the following:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

legal charges over certain of the Group’s
freehold land and certain buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$21,726,000
(2018: HK$23,152,000) (Note 13(c)) and certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$52,600,000
(2018: HK$51,100,000) (Note 14(b));

corporate guarantees executed by the
Company;

pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000
(2018: HK$23,500,000) of the Group (Note
19(b)); and

financial assets at FVPL of HK$24,936,000
(2018: HK$28,873,000) of the Group (Note
20(b)).

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

—FARRBREEE

28 SRTREMEERMEENA
Ro#)

|ITER
AEEBEARTIIHEEE :

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FREIT FET
54,481 39,590
1,542 1,606
3,168 4,846
59,191 46,042

RZEBE-NE=A=1+—H £
#69,727,00058 (= & — J\ F:
71,659,00087T) Z AT B FAER1TRIBE
ERITETAER » SWHTEBE
KA

() BRM#{E 521,726,000/ T
(== — )\ : 23,152,00078
TO)ZAEEE T RAEREL
#h & & TEF(HEE13(c) &
BR M 48 {8 A 52,600,000 JT
(== — )\ # : 51,100,000
TU) ZAEEE T IRE W (M
= 14(0)) ZSEEHE

(i) AATBILZDTER;

iy X"EBERFRITER
23,500,00058 (= & — N\
£ : 23,500,00058 T ) (Fff 5
19(b)) ; &

vy AEERAAETTABZRZ
B 7% & 7= 24,936,000 78 5 (=
Z— )\ £ : 28,873,00078 7T )
(FF=E20(b)) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 Bank and other borrowings and
obligations under finance leases
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Bank borrowings (Continued)

At 31st March 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings
bear floating interest rates of Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 0.25% p.a. to
2.5% p.a. (2018: 1.25% p.a. to 2.5% p.a.) and fixed
interest rate of 1.74% for NTD-denominated loans
(2018: 1.90%). The weighted average effective
interest rate per annum of the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31st March 2019 is 3.9% (2018:
3.0%).

The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2019 and 2018.

Other borrowing

As at 31st March 2019, other borrowing amounting
to outstanding principal of RMB30,000,000
(approximately HK$35,022,000) and interest of
RMB775,000 (approximately HK$905,000). The
borrowing is interest-bearing at a fixed rate of 7.5%
per annum, unsecured and not repayable within 3

years from drawdown date.

e R R MR

28 |ITREAMEERMIENRA

{—1C ¥

(a)

(b)

B|ITES(E)

R-E-HhE=A=+—-8 &K%
B ZRTEEREBRITEERS
SMOBEZ25EZFRNEZZFE
BRE(=ZFE—NE 125EZE25
E)FE  MUFARTEZERE
REEMFRIT4AE(ZZE—N\F:
190E)5tE - R=ZE—NF=A
=+—8 XEERTEEZNE
FHEBRFRNERIIE(ZZ—N
F:3.0E) -

e

—E-NERZE-NEFE=H
+—H BEZAREHEKRES
AR o

3t i 5%
RZZBE-AE=ZA=+—H H
thEEEEREELASARY
30,000,000 7t (#) 35,022,000 &
T)RAE ARKEET775,0007T (X
905,000 T) - 2B EREEF
ME75%E - MEFREER
REA R = FREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

28 Bank and other borrowings and

obligations under finance leases

(Continued)

(c) Obligations under finance leases

The rights to the leased asset are reverted to the

lessor in the event of default of the lease liabilities

by the Group.

Gross finance lease liabilities
minimum lease payments:
— No later than 1 year
— Later than 1 year and

no later than 5 years

Future finance charges on

finance leases

Present value of finance lease
liabilities

BEHNRERERE
HEMNK :
- — &R
— —FUERAEER

BMEBRNZARBEER

BEHANREZRE

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as

follows:

No later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and no later than

5 years

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

—FR
—FHUERAFA

tENEBEERAE

MEHEMAR

HAKEMERBNER

28 HITREMEREMEENA
& &)

- AIEHE

EZEMNERETHEA -

2019 2018

—E—-hE —E-)\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

146 177

- 146

146 323

(2) (11)

144 312
BMEMANEBZHENT ¢

2019 2018

—e-hAE —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

144 168

- 144

144 312




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

29 Deferred income tax 29 RIEFRFIR

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset i 8 Al LRI TRER S E AT ER
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current EEHEEHMEAHEREIRE  BIELRHR
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities SHEENABHE —HEHEM —E
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities FAEERHREBRBRZFEHEE -
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation MEBERESRFHEELELERE
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable B BIEEFRSHEEREEESEAIK
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances Heo REFBHREERELERESHERE
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax DT :

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets to be BB+ ZE B R WNE ZIELE
recovered after more than 12 months FISHEE (3,970) (3,904)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be BREB+ —EAEER ZIEL
crystallised after more than 12 months ey A= 33,729 28,349
Deferred income tax liabilities — net FEEFEHAE — F58 29,759 24,445
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is IRIEFASHERE < FE BT
as follows:
2019 2018
—E—NEFE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1st April RMEAB—H 24,445 22,822
Tax charged to the consolidated RERERE R 2 HiE
income statement (Note 9) (Kia£9) 4,452 743
Tax charged to other comprehensive REMEZEKEIRZHIE
income 716 819
Exchange differences =% 146 61
At 31st March R=A=+—H 29,759 24,445

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred

and liabilities during the year,

29 REEFRS (7@
RHEARHR 2 BB EREhIE L
CERELEFIEHEERGEEH N

income tax assets

without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2017
Charged to the consolidated

income statement

Charged to other comprehensive

income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2018

(Credited)/charged to the

consolidated income statement

Charged to other comprehensive

income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2019

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

Rn=
i

Z-tFNA-H
FRBBERNR

REBZERENR

BN EE

Rn=

2-N\F
ZA=t-H

REalER GEA) /MK

REBZERENR

BN E8

Rn=

Z-NE
=ZA=t-H

G

T :
BIEFRBSRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value Contract
depreciation gains assets Total
mERFHE [RERR BNRE At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
5,761 20,503 - 26,264
1,009 196 — 1,205
_ 819 - 819
- 61 - 61
6,770 21,579 - 28,349
(1,145) (73) 5,736 4,518
- 716 - 716
- 137 9 146
5,625 22,359 5,745 33,729




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Deferred income tax (Continued)

e R R MR

29 SEFEFR{SIR (=)

Deferred income tax assets BEFRBREE
Tax losses
REGR
2019 2018
—E-0F —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFRET FET
At 1st April RMA—H (3,904) (3,442)
Credited to the consolidated income RiREERFTA
statement (66) (462)
At 31st March WR=A=+-8 (3,970) (3,904)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax AAMEFEUEET BN REE UEE
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation BARRERBFEF LR EBRER
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits BIELEFIEHREE - AEEBERER
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of i 18 E5 38 562,027,000/ 8 T(=Z & — N\
HK$562,027,000 (2018: HK$541,401,000) that can be % : 541,401,000 % JT ) 7] 4% 82 LU 3K 85
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax RARRZERBIBA - HRTEERE®
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of ReEBEBER > MUBERZEHRIEE
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date, 8 - B 118,916,000/ 8 T (=& — \F :
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$118,916,000 132,452,000 7t) 2 BLIEEE RN I F
(2018: HK$132,452,000) which will be expired within 5 REIE  ZEBEESBAEDMA -

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MY R

30 Cash flow information 30
(@) Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash

generated from/(used in) operations

RenERH

(a) WEFR®(FiR)RE
BTG BT AT R B (A
VRS 2R

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of leasehold land and
land use rights (Note 12)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)

Fair value gains on revaluation of
investment properties (Note 14)
Amortisation of film rights (Note 15)
Provision for impairment of film rights,
films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Note 15)

Share of losses of associates — net
(Note 16)

Share of loss of a joint venture
(Note 17)

Provision for impairment of interest in
a joint venture (Note 17)

Impairment loss on amount due from
an associate (Note 16)

Impairment loss on amount due from
a joint venture (Note 17)

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Reversal of impairment losses on
other receivables

Impairment losses on AFS financial
assets (Note 20(a))

2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
MRETISBLAIE 1A (83,648) (49,781)
FHE £ h [z £ {3 PRI 8
(Hiat 12) 788 788
Y2 - HBERRBITE
(Kiat 13) 10,868 8,084
BREMES- 2 A RBERE
(HieE 14) (4,076) (19,309)
ERERE (M 15) 23,234 29,155
EENRE  BEPEEREY
MRAEIR & 2 R E RS
(Kt 15) 29,400 17,175
FEREE ARIEBE — F8
(Kt 16) 11,488 1,942
EEEEtERE
(HiaZ 17) - 1,902
R—EEE CEERS ZRER
Bz 17) - 282
FEUL — R B 0\ B FRIE 2R E
B8 (HizE 16) 117 9,415
B —Ea & hERIEZRE
B8 Kzt 17) 550 9,086
H R IE 2 R E 18
4,768 1,283
B HAb e IE 2 REE R
(360) -
AREEMKEEE 2 RERE
(Kizt 20(a)) — 50

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= 55 #% 4 & 51l &£ B B bR 2 &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment — net (Note 7)

Fair value losses on financial assets

at FVPL (Note 7)

Reversal of obsolescence of
inventories (Note 6)

Provision for an onerous contract
(Note 6)

Interest income (Note 8)

Interest expense on loans (Note 8)

Interest element of finance leases
(Note 8)

Exchange losses/(gains)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
Deferred fulfilment costs
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due from joint ventures
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Receipts in advance

Cash generated from/(used in)

operations

e R R MR

30 REeERETH»®)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations (a)

HEMZ - HBERREZ
BE () — B8
(Bta£7)

BAREBERABRR 2T
BEZDIREBEMAZ7)

REFERE (HZ6)

BRENZBE(HE6)

REWA (KizE8)
EXRA S (AaE8)
BMEBEQY 2R 280 (A2 8)

EREE (k)

LEETHE:

FE

B5 R EMEWRIA
BREE
IESE FE 49 A
FESBEE A RIFRE
FE & & R ERIE
E 5 R HMENRIA
BNERE

WA

CEME(ARE

SEmEB (FRR)R& (&)

2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
10 (74)

5,075 4,089
— (933)

2,284 1,453
(2,578) (821)
2,616 270

9 16

1,533 (21,559)
(285) 992
27,899 (17,233)
(24,019) —
(3,511) =
9,137 6,176

— (4,071)
12,175 27,317
(12,010) =
— (8,547)
11,464 (2,853)
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30 Cash flow information (Continued) 30 RHe&REEH @

(b) Net debt reconciliation (b)
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and

the movements in net debt for each of the periods

presented.

Net debt RESH

Cash and cash equivalents RERZERREER

Liquid investments (Note (i) TRENVMERE (KEE )

Borrowings — repayable within BEE — AR—FREZR
one year (including overdraft) (BEER)

Borrowings — repayable after one year £& — BR—F%EER

Net debt B FEE

(i) Liquid investments comprise current
investments that are traded in an active
market, being the Group’s financial assets held
at FVPL.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

REBRZHIR
REEFINFA25 B HABERFE
ZAMREBFE2EE -

2019 2018
—B-AE —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,117 55,406
40,345 41,922
(54,481) (39,590)
(40,637) (6,452)
(45,656) 51,286

() ARBUEREBFENERMIES
EEZHEKRE  BAEKEE
B’? REFTAEBZR 2K

o

At t>

s



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

30 He&RESH =

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (b) BHBFEZHERGE)
Liabilities from financing activities
BRERCAR
Finance leases ~ Finance leases Borrowings Borrowings
due within due after due within due after Interest
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year payable Total
—FRHEM  -EREM -FEREN -FGEE
CHERN  CHEEN FA i | FA i EfifE @it
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
7 77 77 FEr 71 77
Total debt as at 1st April 2017 R-E-tEMmA-A
LRBHE 26 312 1441 7,789 - 0,178
Proceeds from bank loans ROERZAETE - = 19,500 - = 19,500
Repayments of bank loans EBERAER - - (1,652) - - (1,652)
Repayments of interest expenses EENEHR = = = = (286) (286)
Reclassification of finance lease and HERAOREEZENIR
horrowings 168 (168) 1,707 (1,707) = =
Repayments of capital element of [EERERN 2 L5
finance leases (236) - - - - (236)
Interest expenses incurred FEEHEER - - - - 286 286
Exchange differences ENEE - - 211 370 - 581
Total debt as at 31st March 2018 RZZ-N\E=B=+-A
bdit 101 ] 168 144 21,207 6,452 - 21,91
Proceeds from bank loans and other RTEFREMEEZ
borrowings Figsg - - 22,600 971 - 57,511
Repayments of bank loans EERTER - - (12,197) (1,404) - (13,601)
Repayments of interest expenses EENEHR - - - - (1,720) (1,720
Repayments of capital element of EERERD RS AR
finance leases (24) (144) - - - (168)
Interest expenses incurred FEENERY - - - - 2,625 2,625
Exchange differences EiZE - - (92) (287) - (379)
Total debt as at 31st March 2019 RZZ-AE=A=+-A
CRBEE 144 - 31,518 39,732 905 72,209
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MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

30 Cash flow information (Continued)

(c) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds
from sale of property, plant and equipment
comprise:

Net book value (Note 13)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment — net

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 8RR

31 Contingencies

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a writ of
summons and a statement of claim, which was further
amended on 12th October 2012. Pursuant to the
directions from the Court, all of the relevant claims were
further consolidated in the consolidated statement of
claims (the “Consolidated Statement of Claims”) filed on
30th March 2017.

The claims as in the Consolidated Statement of Claims
did not specify the amount of damages being claimed.
The Consolidated Statement of Claims alleged that the
Company was a shadow director of one of its associated
companies (the “Associated Company”) which went into
liquidation in 2003, and in its capacity as an alleged
shadow director owed fiduciary duties to the Associated
Company and were trustees of the assets of the
Associated Company, and also alleged that the Company
fraudulently breached such fiduciary duties.

The directors of the Company, after taking advice from
its legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, consider that the prospects of success
of such claims depends on the findings of the Court
in respect of the legal and factual issues involved in
the case, and that the Company has a good chance to
defend its position. In this regard, the directors of the
Company assessed that there would be no material
liabilities arising from this litigation as at 31st March
2019 and up to the date of this report, and there would
be no material impact to the financial statements of the
Company and the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the years ended 31st March 2018 and
2019.

tENEBEERAE

SREVFE (Aa 13)
HEME ~ HBERR
(B518) Wz — 5

HEMEE -~ HBERR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

30 REeERETH»®)

Bz

Bz

31

(c) EANT EE%MLE%ZEP HEYEE
KR REZISRIBRLE

2019 2018
ZE—-hE —E—-)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

90 84

(10) 74

80 158

KARR

R-2——#mA+=R AATEE
—RERSRRBFREAR=—=
FHATSREE—SB) - BIEK
RIS EWEEERER B+ F
ZAZ+EERBRZEAHHREH
(MEA G R ) NIEE— S -

45 (5 5 R 9 Py 2 B R AL AR BB
RZBERESE - MAHRREAD
BEAARR MR -BB=FEAF
BRFEZBEAT(RBELT )Y
FES AMUBRBEATLAEEE
ff URBHEANEEZEEN B
BREANTURHER A EEE -

ERRERBEAZZR(EEZEBESH
BERE ADAEERR FHAF
REARD R T ERARGEI R 2 AR
REEMEMSHZER MALAE
%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ4aﬁ cFUME - A
NAESTEUFARER=F-NLF
ZRA=tT-BAREEFRBEEAMLRS

ELXEREE  UFEHBEE-ZT-N
ERZF-NF=ZA=ZT-BLEZERR
AMBHRERRAEEGS M BRREK
EXFE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Film rights, films in progress and B ME BETES

film royalty deposits EXRERS
Investments (Note (a)) RE (B1EE (a)
Licenses hR#E

In August 2014, the Group entered into agreements
to set up joint ventures, MREEFRRESTEER
RACEEFR NandEREXETDREREES D
XEREB(2XETHRER”). As at 31st March
2018, the Group had a financial commitment of
RMB49,500,000 (equivalent to HK$61,306,000) in
respect of unpaid capital contributions to these joint
ventures, which represented the Group’s 49.5%
equity interests in £ X EDEREE.

In April 2018, the Group has resolved to dissolve
the joint ventures, and its financial commitment
in respect of unpaid capital contributions was
released. Hence, there was no more financial
commitment in respect of unpaid capital
contributions to £X%18 and EXXTHRER as
at 31st March 2019.

2
7

e R R MR

32 BEXARIE
RBEBROTHEREE > EARE
W

2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
9,310 72,875

- 61,306

2,900 5,225
12,210 139,406

REZE-—WFENA > REBMTLH
BUBLEECEMREEERR
EEEARLAATEEFRIDE
EREKETERRERESOESR
REBTEXEZERER D -
RZZE—N\EF=A=+—H K&
EREZESECEFEE 2 RTEH
BX A AR% 49,500,000 T (HHE
761,306,000 % 7T ) Z B S A&IE -
HERTEERESKXETHREE
2 49.5% BRFE °

RZZ—NFNA » NEBERE
HMEgt¥ MEBBERTEE
ZHBEECHER - At K=
—hWE=ZA=+-—HBEQTEY
BREXETEREBEL KM
EE Z B AENE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ¥k

211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

33 Operating lease commitments
(@) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
in respect of its theatre operations under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the majority
of lease agreements are renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate. The future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and no later than —FLUERAFR
5 years

Later than 5 years AFEE

During the year ended 31st March 2019, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$8,514,000 (2018: HK$7,424,000) (Note 6).

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor
The Group leases its investment properties to
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between
1 to 3 years. The future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

Within 1 year —FR

Later than 1 year and no later than —FUERBEFER
5 years

As at 31st March 2019 and 2018, the Company
did not have any significant commitments under
operating leases.

212 MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ &5 32 #4 & 5 & B B BR 2

33 EEHEPHKIE
(a) HEEBRHRIE — EHREA
& B 2 PR TS AR S S e
KEROHEHEAETHOERY
X HENTF—Z=1+% BXF
A FaE A A RER R IE T B K
EH o REBEFATHELCEROZA

ZARREESHERENT :

2019 2018

—hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

8,605 6,926

48,321 27,817

105,167 55,607
162,093 90,350

BE-ZE-hE=A=1+—-HLHE
B AEEFHELEES8,514,000
BIT(ZF — J\F : 7,424,000
J0) ] LR E R 2 HE(MiEE6) °

(b) WEMORE — EHHAA
REBERBETTHBELCEHOTH
BETHFHEEREME -
HNF—2=F - RETAHHEE
EHAWEZ KRR EKALEZEM
T:

2019 2018
—ZE-hFE —E-N\#F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
2,292 2,631

431 2,844

2,723 5,475

RZZE-NER=Z-NE=A4
=t+—8  AQABLEFMERE
EH A TRIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Related party transactions
Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated

financial statements, significant related party

e R R MR

34 FREALRS
MRS B RR MM HE S
AEBRAFEBBRAETZEAS

transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary BAEATRZWUT :
course of the Group’s business, are as follows:
(a) Sales of services (a) SRERHB
2019 2018
—2-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFETT FET
Rental income received/receivable HERANEYETHE AT Z
from rental of office premises to B ElRES KA
associates 884 1,214

Management fee income received/ 2l EN— e ATz

receivable from an associate EEBWA 245 245
Service fee income received/ Bk —REEE AR Z
receivable from an associate RIS E WA 2,877 =
Interest income received/receivable B Ut FEW —BELE QAT 2
from an associate FE A 465 465
4,471 1,924

Sales of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all customers.

HERBDZEBRERRAERF
Z—REEIRTGELT o
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e IR MR

34 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) Purchases of services

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an
associate

Other administrative costs paid/

payable to an associate

Purchases of services are transacted at normal

commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

(c) Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution

of the activities of the Group. Key management

34 AFREATZH @)
(b) FMEEARH
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
B BT —EBE AT Z
B ERERISERS
7,517 10,216
B BT —REBE AT Z
B AR 3,360 3,585
XSV 3 i) PN P
H At 4T B A 400 400
11,277 14,201

(c) FEEBARHM
FEEESERERASTRER
ABE - WEEEEHS
BEHRATAEE XS - TEE
BAESHEERSMBHRRME

39(a) FIKEE o

compensation is disclosed in Note 39(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

(d) Year-end balances

Payables to associates

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

BERBINEEREARFAEHE
B2 —RERIRFRET ©

g Er-

2018
—E-N\EFE
HK$°000
FET

(1,834)

(d) SE#KEEER
2019
—E—hE
HK$’000
FEIT
T A B FRIE (11,638)
LS EMAER D



35

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2019
(2018: nil).

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

On 31st January 2019, the Company, through a wholly-
owned subsidiary, acquired 35% equity interest in
Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited (“MAEP”),
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at
the considerations of HK$1 and waiver of the Group’s
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of MAEP
amounting to HK$2,349,000. On the same date, the
Company also acquired 37.5% equity interest of Faithful
Arts Entertainment and Culture Limited (“FAECL”) at
the considerations of HK$1 and waiver of the Group’s
amount due to the non-controlling shareholder of FAECL
amounting to HK$1,128,000. The effect on the equity of
the Company pursuant to these transactions with non-

controlling interests is summarised as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interests acquired
Less: B
— waiver of amounts due to non-controlling
interests
— consideration paid to non-controlling

interests”

Excess of consideration for non-controlling

interests recognised within equity

* Less than HK$1,000 and rounded as nil.

35

36

e R R MR

Bz
ESTRERRBE-ZT-NF=A
S+-BLEFEZRE(ZE-NF:
=) o

FERERTH

R-ZZE-AE—A=+—R0 XQFE
B-RE2ENBARKBARARNFEE
MBAREGHREREBRAT([EE
FEBHE] 23BN KRE RER1ER
RBGRAEBEEMNETHREREFER
PR RN 1H 2,349,000t > @A » ANA
ATMWEBAERE BRI (DE
ReeT{L ) 237.5% B REH1E
TRBRAEE RN EERE LI
PR AR R 7R I8 1,128,00078 T ° 25 I
RIERR 5 E AN B RAE 2
T :

2019
—E-hEF
HK$°000
FET

Fir i B8 I 12 R HE 2 O BRTEN{EL

2,416

— RRRMFERERRIR

(3,477)

— XN TFHRERESENRE"

BREXAFERESAEREDPER

(1,061)

* D 1,000 B T BEE o
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Name

4!

Shares held directly by the Company:
FATEERARR :

Mei Ah Holdings Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
FOEMERARR :

Brilliant Idea Group Limited

ATEFRFERRAT

Cameron Entertainment Company Limited

EEREBRAT

al

MATV Limited

XEERARLT

MATV (Asia) Limited

XDER (TN ERAT

Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited

ZL(BR)ERRA

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

Place of

incorporation

R 2 0

British Virgin Islands

ABELHS

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

&k

Hong Kong

3

tENEBEERAE

Principal
activities

IRRE

Investment holding

REER

Production of films and
tele-features

REEYREATH

Production of films and
tele-features

RFEYRERT K

Television operations

SREB

Television operations

ERER

Sales and distribution of

audio visual products
HERBOTYEER

37 KEEE — ETEMELF

Percentage of
effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of

issued share capital/

registered capital by the Group
ERiTRE/ 3 1 Epg ]
BEMEFEE CEREBEARL
50,050 ordinary shares 100
of US$1 each (2018: 100)
50,050 REREE 1 X2
EBER
10,000 ordinary shares 95
of HK$1 each (2018: 95)
10,000 REBREE 182
ZER
2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each (2018: 100)
2REBRAE1BIZERR
4 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each (2018: 100)
AREREE1BRZEER
20,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each (2018: 100)
20,000 RBIRAE1 BT
10,000 ordinary shares 100
of HK$1 each (2018: 100)

10,000 RERAEE1 BT
LER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Name

o

Shares held indirectly by the Company
(Continued):

FAEMERAR(E) :

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited

ZOEYHFARLT

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

XENEREARLA

Mei Ah Entertainment Productions Limited

XDGEREERLT

Faithful Arts Entertainment and Culture Limited
(note (c))

BEREBRAA
(Wit ()

BIG Artiste Management Limited

ATHERRAR

EMEELERNBBRAR
(note (d)) (#7Z (c))

37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

B 2 0

Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

gE

Hong Kong

R

Mainland China
HEl R

Principal

activities

IRRE

Production of films and
tele-features

RFEYRERY

Property investment

NxRE

Concert performance

R =]
/iiqulg

Events organisation

EDEH

Artiste management

EAER

Property investment

ES

e R R MR

37 KEKEE — EEMELF

(&)
Percentage of

effective interest
held/controlled

Particulars of
issued share capital/

registered capital by the Group
ERfTRE/ *REBE /B
EMEFHER CHENERANLL
2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each (2018: 100)
REREEI BT ERR
2 ordinary shares of 100
HK$1 each (2018: 100)
500,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each
2REREREI BT ERR
500,000 REREE1E 72
ERZRELRD
10,000 ordinary shares 90
of HK$1 each (2018: 55)
10,000 REREE1 B2
EER
1,000,000 ordinary shares 90
of HK$1 each (2018: 34)
1,000,000 REREE1ET
EER
1 ordinary share of 100
HK$1 each (2018: 100)
1REESR1 BreEER
RMB16,000,000 70
AR#16,000,000 7T (2018: 70)
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37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 37 KERE — ETEMEBELR

(Continued) (#&)
Percentage of
Particulars of effective interest
Place of Principal issued share capital/ held/controlled
Name incorporation activities registered capital by the Group
ERfTRE/ *REBE /25
1 o M S R FERE EMEFHEE CHENERARL

Shares held indirectly by the Company

(Continued):

EAFRMERERD(E)
ETRAFA L (ER)BRAF hote (6)) Mainland China Provision of services RMB10,000,000 100
(it (e) HER RIERE AK%10,000,000 7 (2018: 100)
EERBFRER(XR)ERAF note (6)) Mainland China Theatre investment RMB20,000,000 100
(HiZ(e) HEIR YRRE AR#20,000,000 7% (2018: 100)
EnH(X2)BRAF (hote (d)) Mainland China Theatre operations RMB3,000,000 100
(Hiit(a) HER YhRER AK3,000,000 7t (2018: 100)
BN EZEREHBRAT (Note (g)) Mainland China Theatre operations HK$8,000,000 100
(HiZ(e) HEIR YIRER 8,000,0008 T (2018: Not yet
incorporated)
(ZB-NE:
e RaE M AL )
FORERRROBRAT Taiwan Sub-licensing of film rights 2,000,000 ordinary shares 85
and television operations  of NTD10 each (2018: 85)

hiE EREYMERERER 2,000,000 RERAEE 10
HaksLER

ZDRX (R RHBRAERLF (note (g)) Mainland China Video online investment HK$2,500,000 90
(Bt (e)) HER YRRAERERE 2,500,00058 7 (2018: 90)
TR (L8)BRDF (hote (c)) Mainland China Theatre operations RMB6,000,000 100
(Bt (c) HER YhRER AK%6,000,000 7T (2018: 100)
ZHEREYRT(XR)BRAF (note (¢) Mainland China Distribution of films RMBS5,000,000 100
(Bt (e)) HER RIEY AK%5,000,000 7T (2018: 100)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 Group structure — principal subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) Other than MATV (Asia) Limited which operates in
Hong Kong and overseas, BEFI=IE £ SR AR,
EDRBEHE(AR)BRAE, ZEREFREE (L
R)BERAR, EDEE(RR)ERAE, BEMEEZDEEBR
EHWAERAR, ERAXR(ER)BEERAR, XEIR
Eh(E8)BMRAR and EREBREZRT(LER)ER
A& which operate in Mainland China, 3124435 & R
AR AT which operates in Taiwan, all subsidiaries
principally operate in Hong Kong.

(b) All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

() The entity is a subsidiary of Mei Ah Entertainment
Productions Limited and, accordingly, is accounted for
as subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control over
it.

(d) Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under Mainland China’s laws.

(e) Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under Mainland China’s laws.

e R R MR

37 KEKEE — EEMELF

(#)
Wit -

(@ KREZEBR(EMERIANES
RgHhEeE  BEMEDAENEE
RAR - EDEREFHEA(AER)
ERLAF XD REFHEEE(L
F)ERAR  ERFH(RE)E
RAR - EMHEDEBRZHER
AR ZEDRREEFT)BREBERA
A XDXREKR(LB)ERAF
RETZEBREZBRTERAERA
AR P E R EE ; bl 3 50 IR 4
BRBRODERQIANRGEBELN
FEMBAREEEEBRE -

() LIFEHBARSRERAT o
0 BERAEXTHBNESRATZ

—EHREAR XEMIBARATE
BEHEHECHMBLR -

(d) RBBEABIRMEEHLZPIE
Bz o

() RBHBPERMEERNLZIEE
= fr1=E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

(a)

Balance sheet of the Company

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
and amounts due from
subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

BE
FRENEE
R ARz s R
P& W B 188 2 R FR IR

EEE
TR FRIE
ReEkERBELER

HAE

o
FAFMAAEMGED
RS

R aE
1S

HEs

AR
mER R
H b FE A 7R

HAR
HERRAR

The balance sheet of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2019 and

were signed on its behalf.

Director

EFE

Li Kuo Hsing

FER

38

(a) FLAFZHERRE

Note
BfEE

24
24
Note (b)
&t (b)

FLAFICEEARERR #iR

As at 31st March

R=A=+—AH
2019 2018
—hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
731,940 736,279
337 337
12 66
349 403
732,289 736,682
118,475 118,475
407,428 407,428
206,232 210,627
732,135 736,530
154 152
154 152
732,289 736,682

AARZEEEERN-2-—NF
NAZtHtEEESSHE - XA
REABERE

Director

EFE

Tong Hing Chi

EE®



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 38 FATFIZEERABEREEM

the Company (Continued) S8z
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FLAFZEMEE
Share Share-based
redemption payment  Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
Dih &2
B {7 FR 1 6 il A ] BAERR RitER ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET FET FET FET
(note (i))
(Wt ()
At 1st April 2017 RZZ—+F
mA—H 12 12,178 235,020 (32,375) 214,835
Loss for the year EREE - - - (4,208) (4,208)
Transactions with HEBAZZS
owners, recognised EHERERMD
directly in equity
Share options lapsed ~ BREXH - (12,178) - 12,178 -
At 31st March 2018~ R=B-N\F
=A=1+-H 12 = 235,020 (24,405) 210,627
At 1st April 2018 R=Z-N\§
MmA—H 12 = 235,020 (24,405) 210,627
Loss for the year FREE - - - (4,395) (4,395)
At 31st March 2019 ~ RZZ-hf
=A=t-H 12 = 235,020 (28,800) 206,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company (Continued)

(b)

Reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

(i)

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3% g1 42 %4

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

tENEBEERAE

38 FAFIZHEARERREM

E =)

(b)

FAFZEMEE (&)

(i)

RRABZHABBEARRD
AIREWMHELRC T
JR 7S T 8% 47 2 IR 40 T 1B B2 Y
WEMELAREEFEZE
B-RBE-NWANAF=ZA
=t - BULEFERRRAM
EEZERRRBE-FT—
EFE=ZA=+—-BLFEH
RIDEEERZER - BRI
BREE-NAN-—FQEEE
1E57) - B SEEEAEE
THEE  BIBARSKAA
2K

(1) ARTREIREHM
REBEELZNERERB
BXAEE &

(2 ARAEEZUZRE
BEEEAMIREEER
HEBITRAUR KRS
BER B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P Rk

39 Benefits and interests of directors 39 EFERIRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFH£
The remuneration of all directors for the years BE—_E—h&ER=—ZE—N\F=H
ended 31st March 2019 and 2018 is set out below: =t—HLFEZRESHMHE
HIT
2019
o

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
HEAREER(FRESLTERNRLNRR REETNENCHE

Other

remungrations

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

conngction with

Employer's  the management

contribution  of the affairs of

toaretirement  the Company

Discretionary  Allowance and benefit o its subsidiary
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  benefits in kind scheme undertaking Total

ERfiEEsLT

FHAENELT

RARERNRH

Rrclfmy ARk
L4 fig it BEEL  AWRENHE i Lt LA #it
HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000
.23 i-74 .74 FET 7T 7T .23

Executive directors HiiEs

Li Kuo Hsing 2AR - 4749 - - 18 - 4767

Tong Hing Chi (Ohief Executve Offcer) B (frA2) - 212 - - 18 - 2143

Li Tang Yuk 3 - 1 - - 18 - T

Dong Ming i - 2206 - - 18 - 22

Non-executive directors HuEs

Hugo Shong KES 8 - - - - - i)

Alan Cole-Ford Alan Colg-Ford 80 - - - - - 80

Independent non-executive directors BiFHTES

Lam Lee G H5E 8 - - - - - 8

Guo Yan Jun EFES 8 - - - - - 8

Leung Tak Sing, Domiic 22 8 - - - - - 8
w 9902 - - 7 - 10204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR MR

39 Benefits and interests of directors

(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Name of Director

e

Executive directors UiiEs

Li Kuo Heing 2ER

Tong Hing Chi (Chief Executve Offcer) E%H (f7ft2)
Li Tang Yuk 3l

Dong Ming £
Non-executive directors HuEs

Hugo Shong RS

Alan Gole-Ford Alan Gole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors BiHfiES

Lam Lee G. i
Guo Yan Jun JhE
Leung Tak Sing, Domiic 23

39 EFRIRER 2

(a)

2018
-

EEMeE)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking;

BEABREE(RARALTIENROTRR BRER RN

Other

remunerations

paid or receivable

in respect of

director's other

services in

connection with

the management

Employer's o the fairs of
confribution the Company

Discrefionary ~ Alowanceand  toarefiement orits subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  beneftsinkind ~ benefit scheme undertaking Total
EZhERANT
ESELL
ERER2HRE
BIZEMRH  ERfAEK
fe §t BEED  ERRENAE HE Ji ZEfe3N &t
HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HiK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000
fir V7 fér fér fér fén fir
- 414 - - 18 - 41
- 200 - - 18 - 2090
- 01 - - 18 - 719
- ALY - - 18 - 2,160
80 - - - - - 8
80 - - - - - 8
80 - - - - - 8
8 - - - - - 80
8 - - - - - 80
40 9629 - - 2 - 10,101
() HBEESHREE-Z-H

(i) None of the directors has waived any of their
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st

March 2019 and 2018.

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2= =5 % £4

LEMEBAERA

G

ER=ZB-NF=ZRA=1-—
A FEZETME



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2019 and 2018.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the years ended 31st
March 2019 and 2018.

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available director’s services

During the years ended 31st March 2019 and 2018,
no consideration was paid by the Company to third
parties for making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31st March 2019 and 2018,
there are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

On 9th June 2017, the Group entered into a
joint venture agreement with Mr. Li Kuo Hsing,
the Chairman of the Company, to form a joint
venture company intended primarily to invest in
motorsports entertainment business at equity and
loan commitments of HK$1,000 and HK$3,000,000
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company has
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of 31st March 2019 and 2018
or at any time during the years ended 31st March
2019 and 2018.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

e R R MR

39 EFRIRER 2

EFEKIET
BE-_Z-NEFR-ZE-N\F=A
=+—-BIEFE  HESECWE
A WEUEMRAER o

EERLEN
BE_Z-NEFR-F-N\F=A
=t+—-BIEFE  HESECWE
A WEUEM A LEER] o

RERHEEREAE=HiRHZ
1=

BE_Z—NFR-_ZF—N\F=A
=+—HILFEE » KQAFHENE
BREESREREAE = ZMHR

B o

FRLUES EEZERHEER
MERESZIRAZHER  EHR
RRAMEZHZRE

BHE-Z-hWGrR=-Z—-N\F=A
E+—HBLEEE HMENES
BEEUSENLIERBEEEREAT
HAZER EERREMRZZ
HE o

EERKZS RUBRASWHRZEX
&

REZZE—tFXANE  AEEHE
RATZ EFZFELEETIEE
DaEE  UABREREFEIED B
#1,0007% Jt & 3,000,000 % JT A%
V—EEELAT ZARREER

BRBEBREETR -

MREXFIIEESEN  RATESH
BRADPAMT IR =ZE—NER
—E-NF=ZA=+—HBELBH
BHE_Z—hWEGrRZZE—-N\F=H
=+ — Bt FEEMAEBEDBRAER
BHAEBEBRBEEZRS * &
ERENPEEREEEEELRF

3L
m ©
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEHFEE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results

Loss attributable to

owners of the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 3£ 55 4% 4 & 5 & B B bR 2 &

AARER AEE
B

BENT :

AEERBEIEANBFEEZXE EEH

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hE —E-)\F ZE—+tHF ZZE-—RE ZE-HEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(85,428) (49,159) (82,259) (66,188) (39,338)
As at 31st March
BR=A=+—H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE2E-hE —E2E-N\HF ZE2E—+tHF ZE2E—RF ZEZ2—HF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
798,987 815,853 842,989 928,163 707,180
(259,514)  (187,525)  (155,367)  (168,243)  (172,239)
539,473 628,328 687,622 759,920 534,941




SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
EEBREWFMR

Address
ok

Shop 2 on Ground Floor
Po Sun Mansion
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
JUBEAL
EH R 8935
ERRE
#h T 2 SRARA

Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28
on 17th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NEENFEE
7 HL4T 32 5%
EEHPLITHE
5% ~ 15-23 55 & 25-28 35 T35

Workshop Nos. 1-2
on 10th Floor Metro Centre
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENFEE
5 BT 32 9%
EEPL1042
1-257 T35

Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and
Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

NEENEEE
LEE 155
NEEBTHAO
5 12355 & 24 5% TR EE{u
it V18 SR ER {u

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60
The Villa Horizon
No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories

HREE
RASBE AT
ES

28553 E K 59 95 & 60 SR E

Type
|

Commercial

GES

Industrial

T

Industrial

I%

Industrial

T

Residential

Lease term

HHFER

Medium

Gab

Medium

Gab

Medium

Gk

Medium

Lkt

Medium

Gab G

Percentage
of Group’s
interests
*HREZ
B2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

TEREVEMR

Address
ok

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng
International Commercial Center
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
R A RHEFE
EM
RO & B8 B SRR
3 3% B PR 7 R s
P& 81£801-814 =

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District

Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin

Si Ming District

Xiamen

The People’s Republic of China
REARLAE

B

BHHE

BELERBBEEFR O

SEIEYNE: 5

355121 E 2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3

No. 2 Hua Xiao Street

Tianhe Ming Ya Court

Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District

Guangzhou

The People’s Republic of China
RE ARLANE

B M

PNEIETSEE Y

LR i 27

ERAT 25

3B1E

Type
|

Commercial

[ES

Commercial

[ES

Residential

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Lease term EEEZ

HHER B2ast

Medium 100%
FRER

Medium 70%
R R

Medium 100%
AR
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